TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING

OF THE PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
September 14, 2017, Thursday
12:00 Noon— Assembly Room 1

Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Committee may make recommendations
to the Board on any of the items listed below,
unless the item is specifically labeled “Informational Only”

Page Time Requestor/
Agenda Item Nos. Allotted | Presenter
Call To Order/Opening Remarks 2 min. Chair
Approval of Agenda 1-2 2 min. Chair
Public Comments 5 min. Standard
NOTE: During the Committee’s consideration of any Agenda item,
members of the public also have the right to address the Committee at that
time regarding that item.
Ratification of Minutes of the August 2017 Meeting 3-15 2 min. Committee
New Business
Consideration and Possible Approval of Policies and Procedures 16-17 All
Patient Care Policies and Procedures
1. Bed Utilization, Demand Greater than Capacity Policy-Tracked 18-21
Changes
Bed Utilization, Demand Greater than Capacity Policy- Clean Copy 22-25
2. Blood Products Administration Procedure- Tracked Changes 26-30
Blood Products Administration Procedure- Clean Copy 31-34
3. Chain of Command Policy 35-37
4. Hand Off Communication Policy- Tracked Changes 38-42
Hand Off Communication- Clean Copy 43-45
5. Nursing Chain of Command Policy 46
6. Plan for Nursing Care- Tracked Changes 47-62
Plan for Nursing Care- Clean Copy 63-72
7. Rigid Laryngscope Reprocessing Procedure 73-74
8. Skin Preparation, Surgical Procedural Policy 75-76
9. Universal Protocol Procedure 77-82
Administrative Policies and Procedures
1. Decision Making for Unrepresented Patients 83-86
2. Mandatory Reporting Requirements- Tracked Changes 87-100
Mandatory Reporting Requirements- Clean Copy 101-102
3. Policy Approval- Administrative 103-106
Unit Specific
Behavioral Health Services
1. Abuse Reporting Forms 107
Education
1. AHA: Non-TCHD Class Participants 108-110
2. Description of professional Education department 111
3. Inservice Education Policy 112
4. Mission and Vision of the Education Department Policy 113
Medical Staff
1. Election Process of Member (s)at Large for MEC 114




Outpatient Behavioral Health

Admission to Inpatient Behavioral Health Unit
Age Appropriate Care

Communications

Solicitation of Patients / Referral to Self
Substance Abuse

Suicide Assessment

2

Outpatient Infusion Center

1. Adverse Reaction- Medication Event
Central Venous Access Devices, Adult
Hospital Admission from the Center
Outpatient Summary List Procedure
Patient Discharge
Physician Orders/ Request for Services

SN AN

Pharmacy
1. Transdermal Fentanyl Patch Prescribing and Use

Pulmonary
1. Pulmonary Scope of Services
2. Respiratory Medication Administration

Rehabilitation
1. Emergency Care Outpatient Services
2. Movies, Videos

Pre-Printed Orders
1. Cardiac Cath Lab Medication Orders
2. Cardiac Rehabilitation Physician Referral orders
3. OB Scheduled C-Section Orders

115
116
117
118
119-120
121122

123
124-134
135-136

137

138

139

140-142

143-145
146-147

148
149-150

151
152
153-154

6. Review and Discussion of CLINICAL Contracts- Contracts To Review
(Discussion/ Possible Action)
7. Motion to go into Closed Session 2 min. Committee
8. CLOSED SESSION 30 min. | Chair
a. Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit and/or Quality Assurance
Committee (Health & Safety Code Section 32155)
b. Conference with Legal Counsel — Significant exposure to litigation
{Government Code Section 54956.9(b))
9. Reports from the Committee Chairperson of any Action Taken in 10 min. | Chair
Closed Session (Government Code, Section 54957.1)
10. Comments from Members of the Committee 5 min. Committee
11. The next meeting of the Professional Affairs Committee of the Board is on 1 min Chair
October 12, 2017.
12. Adjournment 1 min Chair




‘way ayy
JO uUoljesapisuod s saIWIOD

ol1gnd alojaq angnd ay; 0)
8y} Jo siaquuswl woly sjuswwod Buipiebal | jsass)ul Jo way Aue uo ayqnd
IENINEebE g ydesbesed ay) pead j|]aYd}A 40)0311Q | By} JO siaquisw AQ SJUSWIWOD ¢
"sselc) 10)0al1iq Aq papuodss pue
ounsobe( 400811 Aq apew sem "SUOIJEDIJIPOU JO SUOIIPPE OU SJoM
[EN RN EloREY g epuabe ay} anosdde o) uoopy |  8Jay) ‘epusbe sy} pamalnal 99)IWILLI0D By | epusaby jo [eaoiddy ‘g

'} wooy Alquisssy ul Nd 80:21 je

IIBYSIU J0)0alig Japio o} Buysaw 8y} pa||eo |[PYOUN 103081Ig 8piQ oL jed ‘|
a|qisuodsay suonepuaWWOoI3Yy
(s)uosiag juonoy dn-mojjo4 uojissnasi(q oido)

12010 2oue|dwo) JoyD wiusiu| ‘auc)SBUIAI NODS  Juasqy SJaquispy

"ZJaH ualiey| pue euaNg) eloujed ‘owley Awsisr ‘BunoA ans)s ‘I9||IN A1iBUS ‘USBNDIIN UIAS)Y ‘Salojd LUaqoy ‘asoleT jjoy
I8y ‘puowelq Azepy ‘puejbuz eax ‘JpieH Awy ‘siaApy AoueN ‘saineq uoseys ‘eioyis auelq ‘ddo) Ayjey ‘BuoH o] ‘emiel esi ;Juasaid SIBYI0

‘Aiojejnb6ay pue Ayjenp Jojoallqg ‘uosiesld iwer ‘Juawabeue|y ysiy 1o} 10)0811(] IS ‘Ybneueae) eiep
‘jasunog |essua) ‘uopeg Jory ‘dA “IS /AND ‘ZIINYdS uoleys ‘ 4A "ex3 /00D ‘Asjuo) endey ‘0JD ‘ulieiq 8AslS :Juasald siaquisiy Bunop-uoN

"uosuyor
'JQ pue Bl "1Q ‘eznos "ig ‘opJejuo) “Ig ‘sselo suuy ybieT Jojoaulq ‘ounsobeq wip Jojosnq ‘(4eyD) (IBYSNIA BINET JOjoall  Juesald SIoquialy

L10Z ‘01 Isnbny
sajnuly uolissag uadp
Buleay sapIWIWIO) Sliely [eUOISSa)oid
Jajua) [edipsiN A)O-1IL

14dvdd




elsno epued

elsno) epuled

c /210180 ssjnulN Ovd
pue saioljod jo uonesiipow pue uole(idwod
"PamBIABI JaYuNy 8q 0} SPAAU |  8Y} 99SI9A0 OYM SBUO 3y} ale Aay) ‘aljejeN
so)91|0d JO aulBWI) MaIABI By} pue eioujed Jo pasoduod aapiwwo))
Buipiebas abeiqian se no pajnd Buneuipioon |enuepy Juswpedaq $S9201d

Bulaq si Ao1jod sIyl :NOILOV

‘leanocadde pieog

Joj psemuoy Buinow sailjod ay)
anoidde 0} uojjow ay) papuooas
Ssels) J0}0alIg pue paAow
ounsobeq J0j0a1iq "panoidde
a1am Jenosddy Aoljod ay) 1oy
ydeoxe sainpasoid pue sajoljod
SAljeJisiulwpy 8yl :NOILOV

ay} Jnoge pasinbuj ounsobeq 10j0a.1Q

‘uosJiesid lwer Jad
se juswalinbal (gND) Aiojeinbal e si ) se
jlews |eydsoy Joj pasn s} juoy pajeubisap v

‘Aotjod siy)

Ul psuoljus S21U0J}09|D JO }SI| 8Y] WO 00}
paj)siop aJam syQd 'Pod| pue ped| saweu
pueiq 8y} jo Juswaoe|dal ul sauoyduews
Ind 0} uolepuUBWILLIOIBI B SBM 818y |

aAlelisiuiwpy -jeaosddy
ainpasoid g Aoljod '€

$S900V |lBN-3 'Z

Aoljod abesn saoneQq
[enbiq o1uou}oa|3 ssajalip
J3YJO ® ssuoyd Jejn|iad ‘L
:sainpasolid
pue saldljod aAlesSIuIWpY

sainpadold pue saldijod
JO |eaolddy s|qissod
pue uojelapisuo) ‘e
ssauisng MaN ‘G

Zus uaue)]

210z AN wol) saynuiw
paiipow ay} aacudde o) uonow
8y} papuooas ssels) Jojoalqg
pue paaow oufsobeq Jojoang
"Sjualpusue papuswLLIodal ay}
yum dnoib ay) Aq pancidde atom
pue paijijel a19m sajnulw 8y |

=N [T]TT]elg)

8y} Jo siaquisw awos AQ apew SUOI}98.1I0D
JO Jaquinu e a1om asay ) -Bunssw

2102 ‘€1 AInr wouy senuiw ay} anoldde

0} uoHoW B 10} pa||ed |[PYoNN 1010811

‘2102 Aine
JO sejnuIW Jo uoneoiey ‘v

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suoljepuswiwoasdy
fuondy dn-mojjo4

uolssnasiq

aidoy




4210180 SSinuiy Ovd

eliano eouled
/femen esi

ellang) eplljed

so1o1jod ay} anosdde 0} uonow
ay) pepuooas ounsobe( Jojoalq
pue paAow opiejuod 1q “Aoljod
ueld jonuon ainsodx3 uaboyled
aulog poojg ay} jo uondaoxa

a3y} yum panoisdde asem saloijod

[05}UGD uohI|uf 3YL :NOILOV

"apo) [euonN}SU| EIUIOY|ED BY)
ul paje)ls sl Jeym se uoljew.ojul
awes ay} aAeY 0) pasu

solo)jod 9S8y ‘MaIAal Jayuny
104 sapljod NHE 8y} |1e o ind 0}

"$]09)9 snoljoajul Ajjenusjod

1o} paljisse|d-al 8q 0} pasu Sa)sem

jo adA} awos se Ajes|d paulyap aq pjnoys
6eq paJ a)sem snopiezey ayj pue beq yseu}
Jejnbal ay} Jey) pajou sem }| ‘uonenjeas
-al Jo} }no pajnd Buieq si Aoljod siy |

‘sjuswalinbai Auo)njess Jo
uoniuap 1oexs 10j Aoljod siy} ul pasualsjal
3q pINoys apoD jeuonnyjsul VO sy L

‘syuswadinbai Aaojnjess jo
uomjuep joexa 1o} Ao1jod siyy ul padsualaal
9 pInoYs spoD [euonniisu] VO 8yl

"99ILIWOD SIY}

0) oeq Buiwod alojeq Juswueds( |eba
0} paliajas aq pinoys Aaijod siyj jey; paaibe
99)lWWod 8y ‘sjuswalinbai Aio)njels Jo
uonuyap joexs 10} Aoljod sjy} ul pasusiajel
9q Os[e p|noys apoy jeuonnyisuf v ayL

‘pauie|dxa
ANy s1.0G 16 Jo uonlulep 8y} a1sym si jeyy
asneoaq Aoyjod siy) 10} 8oUBIBjBl B SB 9p0D)

ue|d [osuo) ainsodx3
uaboyjed auloqg poo|g |
joJs3uo) uonoadyU|

PIOH 4NOH ¢/
snjels [efa Jo JUBWSSIAPY ‘&

juswijeas |
BAISUBIU| [eUOHIPPY
josAep 0¢ - 0225 ‘€

0G¢S

SPIOH >._N~C3_O>C_ >mD YL ¢

sbuniea| mainay
uoneoyiya) Aeq 1 ‘|

jopeyisN Aor | psasbe sapwiwod ay] :NOILDY | [euonnsu] O Ind 0} papuswIWosss Sem }| S39IA13G Y)|eaH |elolAryag
aioeds yun
‘lepdsoy ay} ul sainpasold
a|qisuodsay suonepuawWWoIdYy
(s)uosiad juonay dn-mojjo4 uoissnasic oidoj




210180 sSiNUIN OVd

elisns) epLed

‘uoijoaldlod
abeiquan Aoj0d :NOILOV

‘leacidde

‘Aoyjod SIY} UO UOISSNISIP OU S| 818y ]

‘Ao1jod siy} Uo UOISSNOSIP OU S| alay |

‘leudsoy ayj 1e suop jJou S| ssadoud siy) se
Ao1j0d siy} uo 1no uaye} sem Bulwequs wis)
ay} ‘uo paylom Bulaq Ajjuaiing si Aojjod siy |

"eluowwe Bujuieluoo suonN|os Yjm
4oes|q N0 XIW Jou op SAeS jey) uonoas ay}
UO UONO31I09 JoUlW B apeuw [|8yodli Joaag

‘ybnouy) swoo pjnom sjuaned ejoqy
pajoadsng jey) apisjno ayj 0} Joop e pue
ainssauid aanebau yum (9z-9) g3 ul wool

e S| 818y} Jey} pauonuaw os|e sem}| ‘ejoqy
pajoadsns jo sjuaied yum Buieap uaym asn
[exdsoy ayj jey) |oo0jold oipoads e s| alay |

suolipuo)

pue suol}oajuj pa1osjes
10} suonneosald jo uonein
pue adA| :xapuj| asessi(

suonnesald
paseg-uolssiwsuel |

pue piepuels

salyiedojeydaosuy
wuojibuodg a|qissiwisued |
:s9sBaSs|(] Uold

juswsieqy plon

foljod ue|d ejog3

Jajua) ase) punopp

pJeog 10} psemio) Buinow ‘uopajep e sl Aoyjod siy | oj10adg Juswpeda
a|qisuodsay suoEpPUBWIWOIY
(s)uosiad juonoy dn-mojjo4 uoissnasiq oido}




G

4210180 ssinuij Ovd

euans) eoued

elisng eoujed

Is|nN Aiays

elsno) eoljed

"uonedlILSd duN PPY ‘NOILOY

‘uonedyied 44N PPV :NOILOV

‘pajepdn Buiaq
ale s82Ual9jel pue sajep ayy
lIoam se pasiaal Buleq aie Aoljod

SIy} uo sjielap ayl ‘NOILLIY

' oinjeubis

Bunosuods, jJou pue ainjeubis
Buisinadns, o) abed jse| ay)

uo Jswaje)s abueyd :NOILLOY

‘lenosdde pieog 40} plemlIo}
Buinow seioljod ay) anoidde o)
uonow ay) papuooss eznos "I
pue paAow oufsobeq Jojoaung
"A1abBing osN pue peaH

ul 814 JO UONUBABI4 pue S)ewlo

‘'saabins NAD-gO 0} bunejal sased
Aiabins uo Jsissy 1Sl se suonouny 4N 9yl

‘peJalap 8q pINoys SdN
104 YONO PUE SOV Jo} Uonesuienb ay |

‘Aa1jod s1y) ul Jno uaye)
9q [leys SdN 40§ YOND jo uofeayiienb ay |

‘AJ1IB|O 0] UOISSNISIP [BWIUIN

*Ao1jod sIy} uo UOISSNOSIP OU SI 819y |

‘ueoisAyd Buisiniadns sy Aq

suofeAlasqo pue sjypne pue ‘sabajald pue
aoijoeud Jo adoos ‘saousjadwiod Jo Malnal
e sapn|oul SN 40} ssad01d maiaal Jaad sy |
‘sueldisAyd se ssaoo.d

Buijenuapaio swes ay} obiapun sdN

sey |ins daq yels [edlpa|y ay) Jey) pappe

Sainpadold pazipiepuels
NA©O /0 -dN 9

salnpadold
pozipiepue)s [ejeucsN-dN °G

sainpadold paziplepuels
1sljlendsoH -dN ¥

Buuoyoo.id
-uonenjeasy aoljoeld
|eUOISSBj0Id pPasnd04 ‘¢

uonejuswbny |eigauap
Joj spsepuelg Buljenuapal) ‘g

ueoisAyd 4o} }Jdaoxs panosdde Ja|IN Auays "dN sassalppe jey; Aojjod sainpasold
aJam sainpaoold pue saloijod yoeas jo abed JaA0D ayj Ul JJe1s |edIpajil, pazipisepuels ABojoipien
ellano) eoujed He1S [1eaipsiNl 84l :NOILOVY ppe 0} UolepuUsWILIOdd) B SEM a1y | -(dN) Jeuonijoeld asinN |
Jeils |edipay
ajqisuodsay suonepuaWWOo23Yy
(s)uosiad juonay dn-mojjo4 uoissnasiq aidoj)

N~



210180 sSINUiN Ovd

elloanc) eioduljed

BI9NS e1ouled

ellang eiduljed

‘lenoidde pseog 10} piemioy
Bunow saoljod ay) anosdde

0] UOHOW 3y} POPUOIAS SSBID)
Jojoalg pue paaow ouyisobe(q
Joyoalq "paroidde sem
amnpadsoid NDIN 8YL :NOILIV

‘kanod
HO Juaund 0} asedwo) :NOILIY

'STIOV 9A0WSY :NOLLOV

‘Aoyjod s1y) UO UOISSNISIP OU Sem 818y |

‘Ajuo NSO 01
sjuaijedu; Jwpe ued sdN }eyl paijue|d sem }|

*Ao110d YO ayy yum pasedwod aq paau
Ao1j0d S|y} Ui pauleyuos uoljeulIojul ay |

"918Y} pajepl|osuod aq ued Aojjod siy) ey
uoneolp uo Aojjod juswuedap e aaey Aew
juswipeds( sp102ay |BOIPSIN 8YL M3IABI

Jayuny Joj no pajnd Buiaq si Aoijod siy )

‘suiogmau

[ewou uo spunol o0} ob s4N soujeipad
ey} pajels sem}| "INo uaye)} aq pjnoys

dN 1o suoneaiienb Svd pue YOND 8yl

‘Ao1jod siy) UO UOISSNOSIP OU 848y |

‘Adeiayjowayd op 0}
paijiad-owsayd ale sNy 9yl ‘Adessyjowsyo
13pJ0 0] payiuad aq 0} pasau Jou op SN

NOIN 8y} ul ated
anlloddng |ejuswidojaasq ‘L

NJIN

SaInpasold pazipiepuels
uolsiAlg Anjeyohsd -z L

A1sbing oaN pue
peaH ul a4 JO UONUBABIG "L L

$S92014 |eAaolddy
sjewlo4 ueldisAud ‘0l

S8INpasold pazipiepue)s
soueipad -dN ‘6

sainpadoid
pazipJepue)s ajnjisu|
aulds pue oipadoydQ -dN '8

SaINpadsold pazipiepuels
ABojoouQ -dN ‘2

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suonepuawWWondy
juondy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

oido]

0



L

410180 seNuUIN Ovd

eliang) eoued

‘lenoisdde pseog 10j piemioy
Buinow seroyjod ay) anoidde

0} UoljoWw 8y} Papu0Ias OpJeIu0D)
"1Q pue panow ougsobeq
Jo)oallq ‘panoidde alem asnqy
aouelsqng pue JuswAed paiusg
Joj 1deoxa yjjesH |esoineyag
wanedinQ 104 sainpadoud

pue saoljod 8y | :NOILOV

0} SBWO09 }| uUsym 0} sasaype Juswuedsap
ay} Jeyy sulspinb e se saauas Aoljod siy |

"90ual9jal e se Aoljod siy} 0} pappe sem
uoneulws}e abelano) |20 SND YL

‘uona|ap Aoljod e si siy |

‘leluap adueinsul

Jo ssajplebal palinbai uonuanialul

pue juauwijeal) ay} papiroid sAemje ale
sjuaned "uaddey Ajaies sjuswAed paiusp
pue wa)sAs Buljjiq umo Jisy) sey yjjeaH
jeloneyag juanedinQ ay) jey} pauonuawl
yeseg -Aoijod siy) Jopun paisnod Ajued

S| Yoiym uoijeuiws)ap abelanod aoueinsul
Jo anss| ay) dn jybnouiq ounsobeq 101004
"SpJepue)s SIND Jualind ay) sjos|al

Aanjod siyy 1eyy dnoub ayy o) payueo yeseg

"aouaIajal e se Aoljod siy) 0} pappe sem
uoneuluslaq abeisno) |e20T SIND 8yl

"Juswinoop

pajejal e se pappe Sem suoljeinalqqy
jendsoH jo esn uo Aojjod sy ‘yuswpedsq
NHg o} ooads ale suoleirnaiqge asay |

sbunesy Alunwwo) ‘9

JuswIsSsSassy |edlulD ‘g
HEIS

BuiAnoN nouip Alueg
Buirea] ® aouepuspyy ‘v

JUBWLISSOSSY UoIssSiwpy ‘¢

CTE )
AnqiBii3 pue uoissiwpy Z

suonemnaiqqy |
ullesH [elolaeyag juayedinQ

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suoniepuaWLWOIY
Juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oido)




o
210180 s9INUIN OvVd —

iIsnoAAer yeleg

"99}ILIWO0D SIY) 0} ¥oeq 1ybnolg

aq |m Aoljod siyl :NOILOV

"IN JO pesjsul dHVY

pies aAey pjnoys )i ‘Alewiwins abieyosip
pa1a|dwoo 8y} Uo UoI081I00 B Sem alay |
"‘@0uai9jal e se Aoljod siy) 0} pappe sem
uoijeululs}aq abelano?) 8207 SIND BYL

"Aoyjod siyj Jo} Juswinoop pajejel e se
pappe sem Jajsesiq |eudsoH uo Aoljod ay |

"Jlun 8y} uo siolneyaq

[njwiey ssalppe ued Aay) os |ejdsoy

ay} Aq papinoad st Bujuiesy siy)  ‘sanbiuyoe)
uolje|easa-ap Ajysow ase yoiym sbuiuiel) |40
saoblapun yjjesy |eioiaeyag ui yejs auy} ||y

‘Aoljod |eydsoy

yim uoiounfuod ul sjuswAed pajuap 1oy
So|puey juswpedap ay} Moy uo pspasu

s| uoneuejdxa Jayunj e ‘pa|ind si Aaijod siy

"Aatjod s|y} 0} 8oualajel

e se pappe sem uoljeulwsdlaq abeianon
|e207 SIND 9y} pue pajepdn sem Aojjod siy |
"Aa1j0d Sy} UO UOISSNISIP OU S| 8JdY |

‘Ao1jod siy} UO UOISSNOSIP OU SI 818y |

'sbuesw Ajunwiwiod

abieyosig
pue Buiuueld abieyosiq gl

ue|d Jajsesiq gl

JOoIABYD G JUB|OIA
Ajlenuajod 10 SAlonJIsSaq L L

JuswAed paiuaqg-ol

soJoN ssalboid Ajleq ‘6

puegefnuo) 'g

sbunno Ajunwwon /1

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suoljepuswutuoday
juondy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

aido}




6

/10180 SSINUN OVd —

"A2110d S1Y} UO UOISSNISIP OU S| alay |

"Aoijod siy} uo UOISSNOSIP OU SI alay ]

‘Ao1j0d sIy} UO UOISSNOSIP OU S| 818y |

*Ao1jod siy} uo uoISSNOSIp ou S| alay |

"SUO{}BO0| 3)ISYO uo sainpadsosd
an|g apo) ay} saulpno Aoijod siy |

"S90IAIBS qe| Buipaau sjuaijed 1oy
Jstwojogajyd |eydsoy sy} sasn Juswpedaq
UllesH |eloireyag juaneding sy

‘Aojj0d siyy ojul pasuaisjel
3¢ pinoys apo) [euonnjiisu| ejuiojijled
ay} o} Buip1odoe 0G| G JO UonILLSP BY L

‘Ao1jod s1y} UO UOISSNISIP OU S 818y |
"$92|AISS Uljeay |eloireyag JuanedinQ

ay) Buipuape sjuaijed 10} 8p0d SSaIp dY)
aulop o} aulapinb e se sanlas Aoljod siy|

‘uonajep Aaljod e s siy

ainonus [euoneziuebin ez

sa|ny weibold
yum soueljdwo)-uoN 'zz2

1senbay Juswnoo(

|euonippy a1edIpsiy Lz

saouasqy
pasnox3 AjlesipaiN 02

salouabiaw] |eoIpaN ‘6L

S90IM8g Auojeioqe] gL

uonusleqg
Jusied Alejunjoau| /L

JUBWIAA[OAU] Ajlwed 9|

sjuaijed 40} apo) ssaiq Gl

auoydsja] ay} oA
uoljew.lIOo| JO 8INSOISIq 1

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUOlEPUBWILLIO0IDY
juonay dn-mojjod

uoissnasiqg

oido]




ol

N

210180 SOINUIN OVd —

iIsnoAAep yeleg

"9dualsjal B ppY :NOILLIV

‘uonsjep Aoljod e si siy]

‘Aoljod sy} UO UOISSNISIP OU SI 8Jay |

"@0ualIa)al e spaau Aojjod siy )

‘sjusied yjeay |eloireyaq Ul sanbiuyos)
Juswaolojulal aAlisod Jo asn o} sisjoweled
apinoid o} auljepinb e se saaias Aoljod siy |

"}oom Jad 921A18S JO sHun (USAS|S Jou)
SAJOM} UBY) 810W OU dAI828d Ajjlensh yjjesH
jeloineyag juaijedinQ ui sjusned °,Sa0IAI0S

Jo adoag, 0} pabueyd sweu Adijod

‘slepio
dN pue ueisAyd Buissaippe Aoijod |ejdsoy
9} ojul pajepljosuod aq [jim Aaljod siyL

"aoualael e se Aaljod siy) o} peppe sem
uoneulwislaqg abeiano) 8207 SIND Byl

‘Aajjod siyj Joj Juswinoop
pajejal e se pappe aq ||im sjuiejdwod
juaned Buissasppe Aojjod |epdsoy ay |

uoljewliojuj Jo ases|ay "¢

Buiussiog
UOISSIWPY pUe |eudiey 0¢

sapuabiaw g ouielyosAsd 62

sonbiuyoa |
JUBLWIBDIOJUIBY SAISOd ‘]

uosodwon
JJBIS pue sadineS
|euoissajold Joj ueld /2

sIaplQ Jauonnoeld

asinN pue ueisAyd 9z

19p1Q uoIssiwpy ueisAyd gz

sputejdwo) sned vz

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suonepuswwoddy
Juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oido]




b

o
210180 sSinuIN Ovd —

‘Ao1j0d sIy} uo uoISSNOSIp ou si aJay |

‘uonejep Aaljod e si siy |

"pJ02ad |edipauwl sjuaned ay) ul papn|oul
s| Juaned yoeas Jo }si| aJed jo Aewwns ay)
:Juswinoop Jajsuel} e jo asow si Aoljod siy |

‘sjuanjed yyesH |eioneyag ay) o}
sojelas pue sulepad )l se asnge aouejsqns

Buluue|d juswiyeal] "ge

sjuaned Aq asn auoydsjo| /¢

1SI7 8J4e) jo Alewwng "gg

‘asnge | Jo uopiulep pIjoS B 8q 0} spasau aiay) paalbe
IshoAAer yeleg aouelsqgns aulad :NOILIY dnoub ayj se pajind Buiaq si Aojjod siy | asnqy aoue)sqng ‘Ge
aojjoel4 |BUOISSD)0Id
*Aa1jod s1y) 0} uoissnasip ou sl a1ay| | pue |edlulD 10} SPJepPUR)IS vE
"Ao|jod siy} 0} Juswnaop pajejal e se pappe
aq [ |eydsoy sy} Jo Aoljod sa1j-0)0WsS Y| | JUSWUONAUT 8814 S)OWS €E
"Allep aouepuajie u| ale siojoallq [edIpa
"'sonsas weibold ay) jeyy uoneindod sy} o}
Jayeo Ajjsow pue pauijino ale isidessy) e Jo
saljiqisuodsal ay| ‘Juswuedsp ay) ul uass
Butaq Jusned yoes 10j sueoiuld jeuoissajoid
pasua|| Se Joe y)jeaH |esoineyag uaneding
ul s)sidelay} ay) Jey) paiijuapl sem } }sidesay] jo 8|0y ze
ajaqisuodsay suolepuswwosay
(s)uosiad juonoy dn-mojjo4 uoissnasiqg oido]




¢l

10180 s8nNuUlN Ovd

elieng epujed

SpjouAay

ejliosud

elieno eoujed

elancg) eiouled

pseog 10} psemuoj Buinow
sayoijod 8y} anoidde o0} uonow
ay} papuooas uosuyor "iqg

pue paaow oulsobe(q J0}0aliq
‘panoidde alam sainpadoid pue
saoljod Anjews|a] 8yl :NOILOV

‘NOVd woiy asueldesoe a8y}

ul pazjjeal aq |m sjuaned asay)
1o} ai1eo Buipinoid Ui LojwoD J1vy)
Jey} os saul|l aAiseAul buipiebal
SNY
0} uonednpa |eipsway NOILOV

a1l 0} pepnoid 8q

‘lenoidde pieog 10} piemioy
Buinow saoijod ay} anocidde o)
uonow ay) papuodss eznog "iq
pue paAow ounsobeq Jojoang
‘panoidde sem uofejijigeysy
Joj aunpaosold ay] :NOILIVY

‘lenocidde pieog

Jo} pJemuoy Buiarow saioljod ayy
anoidde 0} uoyow ay) papuodas
opiejuo) "I pue paaow
oufisobe( Joyoaug ‘panoidde
SeM Ja)ua) uoisnju| yuanedinQ
Joj aunpaosoud ay] :NOILOVY

ay) 1deooe o0} pasngl aney Aew yels
BWOoSs pue mo| si sjualjed asay) JO aWN|OA
8y} Jey} pepuodsal ejosud sueloisAyd
8y} 0} 1no plom 8y} 106 0} pasu Jojeonpa ayy
Jey) pue saul| dAISBAU] Jojluow 0} A)jiqeded
8y} sey 99| aleme jJou sem 3y paje)s
os|e eznog "13 "N} 8y} ul g 0} pasu Jou op
Aay} uaym ND| O} Wwsy) spuss 1o JybIuisAo
Ul JI 8AB8| Jay)el p|noM ay uaym paaowal aq
0} SUll-y 8y} 10} SI9pIO SB)UM BY dI0jaiay)
pue sjaned asay} ,9AeY, Jouued jejs
Answajay ay) yey) wiy pawloul SNY NOVd
asnedsaq Ajjigedes siy; pey am alemeun
Sem 8H 'saull ©8AIseAul Jo Buuojyuow
uo uoneoyue|p 1o} payse uosuyor ‘Ig

"Juaned ay) Jo uondUN} WNWIXew
aJlojsal jou ‘uieyuiew digy o) s1 ssodind
ay) :dnoub s,uosunjied ay) jo asodind
83U} UO UOI}081I0D JOUjUW B SBM Blay |

Kaijod sy} uo uolIssnasIp ou si a8y

000¢
HSvQ ey} buisn syuaned
Ayowea) Buuoyuopy |
Anawaa)

sdnouo
yoeal-jnQ Apunwiwod
uonejtjiqeysy

sojouabiswg jeslpay ‘L

Jajuan uoisnyjuj Juaneding

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suolepuUAWIIOIBY
Juonay dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

oido}

14



el

210180 SSINUIN OVd ~—

[IBYSUIN Joyoalig ‘Wd 22:2 1e pauinolpe buias|y Juswiunolpy ‘L
29))lLWo) 8y}
[IBYOUA 40308110 "'SJUSWIWIOD O | JO siaquiapy wolj sjuswwo) 0l
uolssag
paso[D Ul usye| uonoy Auy
lIeYoHWy 4030841 "uUsYe] SuUOoIljoe Ou a1am alay | Jo uosiadiieys ayy jo suoday ‘6
‘Wdoz:2
lIBYONIA 41030811 Je uoissag uadQ 0} uinjal saiwwo) ay | uoIssag uadQ oy uIN}dyY g
‘Nd GL:1 }e uolsses paso|d
ojui o6 0} panosdde Ajsnowueun
SeM )| pue papuooss uosuyor ‘UOoISSag Paso|D Ol
lIdYa)N 4030811Q "1q ‘paAow ounsobe( JojoaaQq 06 0} uoijow e 10} payse ||sYd)N 401081 uoIssag paso|D '/
"Yjuow siy} MalAal 10} S)oesluod
{IBY2IN 4030311 "BUON :NOILOVY |eoiul)o ou ale aiay) pauodal sem )| sjoeljuo) |esiuld ‘9
"S@ouUalajal Spunoyy

Bliano epLed

sjeudoidde ppy :NOILOV

‘leaoidde

"S90UBI8J8l alow spaau Adljod siy L

‘syusiied asay) 1daooe 0} Buisnjal yeis
3y} JOo aieme jou alie wea) Juswsbeuew
9191 9By} pue vBYyS |I9AS]  HOJUO0D
lj|ay} Jo esnedsaq NOVd wosy sjaned

Wwea| PUNOAA PUB UNS 2

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suonepuaWWOoIdY
[uoldy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oido|




ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center YOU

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

September 14, 2017
CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE
Policies and Procedures ] Reason | Recommendations
Patient Care Services

1. Bed Utilization, Demand Greater than
Capacity Policy — Tracked Changes 3 Year Review,
Bed Utilization, Demand Greater than Practice Change

Capacity Policy — Clean Copy
2. Blood Products Administration Procedure ~

Tracked Changes 3 Year Review,
Blood Products Administration Procedure — Practice Change
Clean Copy

3.  Chain of Command Policy Practice Change

4. Hand Off Communication Policy — Tracked
Changes 3 Year Review,
Hand Off Communication Policy — Clean Practice Change
Copy

5.  Nursing Chain of Command Policy DELETE

6 Plan for Nursing Care — Tracked Changes

Plan for Nursing Care — Clean Copy Practice Change

7. Rigid Laryngoscope Reprocessing 3 Year Review,
Procedure Practice Change

8.  Skin Preparation, Surgical Procedural 3 Year Review,
Policy Practice Change

9. Universal Protocol Procedure Practice Change

Administrative Policies & Procedures

1.  Decision Making for Unrepresented
Patients 397

2. Mandatory Reporting Requirements 236 —
Tracked Changes
Mandatory Reporting Requirements 236 -
Clean Copy

3. Policy Approval-Administrative 240 Practice Change

NEW

Practice Change

Unit Specific
Behavioral Health Services

3 Year Review,

1. Abuse Reporting Forms Practice Change

Education
1. AHA Non-TCMC Course Participants 3 Year Review,
Policy Practice Change
2.  Description of Professional Education 3 Year Review,
Department Practice Change
3. Inservice Education Policy 3 Year Review

4.  Mission and Vision of the Education

Department Policy 3 Year Review

16



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center X YOU

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
September 14, 2017
CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

Policies and Procedures l Reason [ Recommendations
Medical Staff
1.  Election Process Members at Large MEC .
8710-531 Practice Change
Outpatient Behavioral Health
1. Admission to Inpatient Behavioral health 3 Year Review,
Unit _Practice Change
. 3 Year Review,
2.  Age Appropriate Care Practice Change
3. Communications DELETE
4. Solicitation of Patients & Referral to Self DELETE
5. Substance Abuse SUCETLET T

Practice Change
3 Year Review,
Practice Change

6. Suicide Assessment

Outpatient Infusion Center

3 Year Review,

1.  Adverse Reaction - Medication Event .
Practice Change
2. Central Venous Access Devices DELETE
3. Hospital Admission from the Center 3 Year Review
4.  Outpatient Summary List Procedure DELETE
5. Patient Discharge 3 Year Review
6.  Physician Orders Request for Services 3 Year Review
Pharmacy
1. Transdermal Fentanyl Patch Prescribing Practice Change
and Use

Pulmonary

3 Year Review,
Practice Change
2.  Respiratory Medication Administration Practice Change

1. Pulmonary Scope of Services

Rehabilitation
Emergency Care Outpatient 1504 Practice Change
Movies, Videos TR 902 DELETE

N =

Pre-Printed Orders
1.  Cardiac Cath Lab Medication Orders 8711- 3 Year Review,

4536 Practice Change
2. Cardiac Rehabilitation Physician Referral
NEW
Orders
3. OB Scheduled C-Section Orders 8711- 3 Year Review,
1118 Practice Change

1=



o)
@ Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES RPOLICY-MANUAL

TRACKED
CHANGES

ISSUE DATE:

01/02 SUBJECT: Bed Utilization, Temporary Opening
and Closing of Inpatient
Beds/UnitsBemand-Greater-than

Capasiy

REVISION DATE: 03/02, 06/03, 01/04, 06/05, 03/10 POLICY NUMBER: II.G

08/10, 12/13

Department Approval: 0517

Clinical Policies &and Procedures Committee Approval: 09/1302/1606/17
Nursing Executive Committee Approval: 09/1307/17
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 1113

Board of Directors Approval: 12/13

A TEMPORARY OPENING OF BEDS/UNITS-BEMAND-GREATER THAN CARACITY:

1.

2.

4:3.

“Admissions to the inpatient nursing units shall not be denied without express consent from the
Director, Administrative Supervisor, Manager, or Chief Nurse Executive or designee.

Acute Care Services (ACS):

228, OverflowstACS aeute—eare—pat:ents may be placed outssde of the designated nursing

units to maximize resources.
3-b. ACS eutecare-aareas shall be staffed and equipped accordingly.
Telemetry:
a. During increased Telemetry census, Telemetry patients mayean be placed on 4 Pavilion

(4P) and staffed with Telemetry Registered Nurses (RN)-rurses at a ratio of one RN

to 4 patients (1:4).

5. All patients will be assigned a room on Telemetry by a Telemetry Assistant
Nurse Manager (ANM) or Rellef Charge Reglstered Nurse (RN)

iii. Patlents W|th admlssmn or transfer orders not wrltten by a carduologlst or
cardiovascular surgeon may be assigned a room on 4P

iiil. Patients with admission or transfer orders written by a cardiologist or
cardlovascular surgeon will be assrgned aroom on 2E, 2W, 4E or 4W

4P

Intensive Care Unit (ICU):

6-a.  During increased Telemetry census for admissions only, limited program flexibility shall
be initiated. Four Intensive Care Unit (ICU) beds will be designated as Telemetry admits
beds for a period not to exceed 72 hours. These beds shall be staffed using licensed
nurse-to-patient ratios representative of the ICU staffing ratio 1:2.

&, Nurse Managers/ANMs shall notify Regulatory Services as soon as possible, by
phone or by email for submission of “temporary permission for increased patient
accommodations request review and approval sheet.”

Women and Newborn Services (WNS):

18



Patient Care Services

Bed Utilization, Temporary Opening and Closing of Inpatient Beds/Units

Page 2 of 4
a. Overflow of Mother/Baby outside of the designated nursing units may occur when
bed demand is greater than capacity. Mother/Baby shall be staffed and equipped
accordingly.
6. Neonatal Intensive Care (NICU):
b-a.  Per NICU Policy: NICU Placement: Overflow to Alternate Location (Temporary
Overflow).
B. TEMPORARY CLOSING OF BEDS/UNITS:
1. Inpatient Bbeds may be closed as a result of census, staffing, infection control, emergency, or
maintenance problems.
a. Beds shall not be closed without express consent of the Unit Director or Manager or

Administrative Supervisor (nights only).

b. Prior to closure of a unit, the Assistant-Nurse-Manager-ANM or designee is
responsible for communication with the Administrative Supervisor to evaluate the
potential need for beds by other departments.

2. Patient acuity and safety will be taken into consideration when deciding to close a unit.

3. The Assistant-Nurse-Manager-ANM or designee must complete the Closure of Nursing
Unit Checklist before the unit/beds can be considered closed and submitted to the
Regulatory Compliance Department.

4. Intensive Care Unit:
a. Two code blue nurses are assigned from the unit that remains open.
b. The crash cart and defibrillator on the closed unit must still be checked every
shift.
c. The code blue response defibrillator will remain on 1East and code blue drugs will

remain in the refrigerator on 1West. It is the responsibility of the code blue RN to
check the crash cart and defibrillator on the closed unit.

4d. The charge nurse or designee must check the emergency procedure trays on 1
East and 1 West

ADMITTED PATIENTS WAITING FOR BEDS:

1. Registration staff shall notify the Administrative Supervisor, ANM or Manager when a patient is
to be admitted and a bed is not availabie.

2. The Administrative Supervisor, ANM or Manager shall assign the appropriate area for direct
admits based on patient assessment, physician orders, and availability.

FORM(S):

1. Closure of NICU Overflow Area-Checklist
2. Closure of Nursing Unit Checklist - Sample
B:3. Opening of Nursing Unit Checklist - Sample

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1 Intonsive Care Unit-Policy-Cl £ Bod
1_ MESRRER 2HAE hildren e ice W B A= R &2 —Ihre DV E
i i NICU Policy: NICU Placement:
Overflow to Alternate Location (Temporary Overflow) Procedure

..... =0 ¥l

19



Patient Care Services
Bed Utilization, Temporary Opening and Closing of Inpatient Beds/Units
Page 3 of 4

Closure of Nursing Unit Checklist
Location: Date: Person(s) Completing:

a Confirm the appropriate beds are available after all transfers and /or discharges are complete
A Complete Narcotic check on medication Pyxis (inventory)

Notify the Following: (These task may be delegated to an Unit Secretary)
Administrative Supervisor (AS) Private Branch Exchange (PBX)

Staffing Office Notify the Monitor Technician (MT)
Pharmacy (to turn off Pyxis access) Environmental Services
Information Technology (IT) /AS (nights/weekends) Food & Nutrition

(Notify to “shut down” printers) Security

Facilities Management Medical Records

Security

quipment Checks & Storage as follows (or per Unit quidelines):

Crash Cart - Document on Crash Cart Checklist "Unit Closed" in the appropriate date field

Plug in infusion pumps - store in a patient room

Plug in Work Station on Wheels/WOWs and store in a locked room

Place clean bedside commodes - in a patient room and-visiter's-chairs-in-patient's room

Place visitor's chairs in patient’s room

Store glucometer, doppler, pulse oximeter and other unit specific equipment in Medication Room
Store Crash Cart and Defibrillator in Medication Room

Nurse Locators - Place in the supply room located near the nurse's station

Patient Charts — Store empty charts in designated area

Patient Medications - transfer with patient or return medications to Pharmacy

OO0 DOoOoao
ooooOooo

m

Ooooooooooog

Verify Patient PHI information is secured - if PHI is found, discard in Shred Bin. Check the unit for the following:
Check all drawers and cabinets to ensure there is no unsecured PHI or logs with patient information
Patient census
SBAR and hand-off forms with patient information
TASK list
Check Physician's dictation room (including copier) for any PHI
Check all printers for PHI
Check all patient rooms for PHI
Check all supply rooms for PHI

elemetry boxes and lead wires:
Count Telemetry Transmitters (boxes) and lead wires. # of Telemetry boxes = # of Lead wires =

Open battery latch to prevent battery contact with latch or remove batteries
Store clean Telemetry boxes and lead wires in wire baskets above the sink near nurses' station

leaning Requirements:

OO0l ocoooooogls

(2]

O Notify Environmental services to clean unit

O Verify each patient room is clean

O Turn off the lights and close doors of each patient room

O Turn off the lights in Physician Dictation Room, Supply Rooms, etc
Turn off power on the following:

Computer monitors
Pharmacy fax machine
Telemetry monitoring screens
Copier and printer to be turned off after 2 hours and final sweep for PHI (shared copier may be left on.
Forward phones to designated unit if applicable
Close fire doors to unit and ensure they are locked
Turn off the lights on the unit.
Place unit keys in the ANM Office
*Fax completed form to Laura-Gipsen;the Regulatory Compliance Specialist at 760-806-4645

ooooooono

20



Patient Care Services

Bed Utilization
Page 4 of 4
Opening of Nursing Unit Checklist

Location; Date: Person(s) Completing:
0 Confirm the need to open beds are available after all transfers and /or discharges are complete
O Complete Narcotic check on medication Pyxis (inventory)
Notify the Following: (These task may be delegated to an Unit Secretagﬂ
O Administrative Supervisor (AS) Private Branch Exchange (PBX)
O Staffing Office E] Notify the Monitor Technician (MT)
O Pharmacy (to turn on Pyxis access) O Environmental Services
O Information Technology (IT) /AS (nights/weekends) O Food & Nutrition

(Notify to turn on printers) O Medical Records
O Facilities Management
O Security
Equipment Checks - Return equipment to operating locations and plug them into a power source:

Crash Cart — Mark off the days the unit was closed on Crash Cart Checklist asChecklist as "Unit Closed"
Unlock supplies and equupment
Nurse Locators—Plas

Check the explrat|on date on food Ieft in the refrlgerator as applicable

erify Patient PHI information is secured - Check the unit for the following:

Check all drawers and cabinets to ensure there is no unsecured PHI or logs with patient information
Patient census - discard in the Shred Bin

SBAR and hand-off forms with patient information - discard in the Shred Bin

TASK list - discard in the Shred Bin

Check Physician's dictation room (including copier) for any PHI

Check all printers for PHI

Check all patient rooms for PHI

Check all supply rooms for PHI

elemetry boxes and lead wires:
Count Telemetry Transmitters (boxes) and lead wires. # of Telemetry boxes = # of Lead wires =

Place new batteries in Telemetry boxes for assigned beds
Store clean Telemetry boxes and lead wires in wire baskets above the sink near nurses' station

leaning Requirements:
Notify Environmental services to clean unit as needed

Verify each patient room is clean
Turn eff-on the lights and elese-open doors of each patient room
Turn eff-on the lights in Physician Dictation Room

OO0000000)E opoooo

Q OoOaglg

4 oooo

rn on power on the following:

Computer monitors

Pharmacy fax machine

Telemetry monitoring screens

Leave-cCopier and printer power—ON"wait sufficient time for cued jobs to print and secure PHI
Cancel forward on phones as if applicable, confirm telephones are working

Open fire doors to unit

Turn on the lights on the unit.

DDDDDDD'

*Fax completed form to Laura-Gipsen; the Regulatory Compliance Specialist at 760-806-4645

21



2
(C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California CLEAN COPY
PATIENT CARE SERVICES
ISSUE DATE: 01/02 SUBJECT: Bed Utilization, Temporary Opening

and Closing of Inpatient Beds/Units

REVISION DATE: 03/02, 06/03, 01/04, 06/05, 03/10 POLICY NUMBER: III.G

08/10, 12/13

Department Approval: 05/17
Clinical Policies and Procedures Committee Approval: 06/17
Nursing Executive Committee Approval: 07/117
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 1113
Board of Directors Approval: 12/13

1.

2.

TEMPORARY OPENING OF BEDS/UNITS:

Admissions to the inpatient nursing units shall not be denied without express consent from the

Director, Administrative Supervisor, Manager, or Chief Nurse Executive or designee.

Acute Care Services (ACS):

a. ACS patients may be placed outside of the designated nursing units to maximize
resources.

b. ACS areas shall be staffed and equipped accordingly.

Telemetry:

a. During increased Telemetry census, Telemetry patients may be placed on 4 Pavilion
(4P) and staffed with Telemetry Registered Nurses (RN) at a ratio of one RN to 4
patients (1:4).

i. All patients will be assigned a room on Telemetry by a Telemetry Assistant Nurse
Manager (ANM) or Relief Charge Registered Nurse (RN)

ii. Patients with admission or transfer orders not written by a cardiologist or
cardiovascular surgeon may be assigned a room on 4P

iii. Patients with admission or transfer orders written by a cardiologist or
cardiovascular surgeon will be assigned a room on 2E, 2W, 4E or 4W

Intensive Care Unit (ICU):

a. During increased Telemetry census for admissions only, limited program flexibility shall
be initiated. Four Intensive Care Unit (ICU) beds will be designated as Telemetry admits
beds for a period not to exceed 72 hours. These beds shall be staffed using licensed
nurse-to-patient ratios representative of the ICU staffing ratio 1:2.

i. Nurse Managers/ANMSs shall notify Regulatory Services as soon as possible, by
phone or by email for submission of “temporary permission for increased patient
accommodations request review and approval sheet.”

Women and Newborn Services (WNS):

a. Overflow of Mother/Baby outside of the designated nursing units may occur when bed
demand is greater than capacity. Mother/Baby shall be staffed and equipped
accordingly.

Neonatal Intensive Care (NICU):

a. Per NICU Policy: NICU Placement: Overflow to Alternate Location (Temporary
Overflow).

22



Patient Care Services
Bed Utilization, Temporary Opening and Closing of Inpatient Beds/Units

Page 2 of 4
B. TEMPORARY CLOSING OF BEDS/UNITS:
1. Inpatlent beds may be closed as a result of census, staffing, infection control, emergency, or
maintenance problems.
a. Beds shall not be closed without express consent of the Unit Director or Manager or
Administrative Supervisor (nights only).
b. Prior to closure of a unit, the ANM or designee is responsible for communication with the
Administrative Supervisor to evaluate the potential need for beds by other departments.
2. Patient acuity and safety will be taken into consideration when deciding to close a unit.

3. The ANM or designee must complete the Closure of Nursing Unit Checklist before the unit/beds
can be considered closed and submitted to the Regulatory Compliance Department.
4, Intensive Care Unit:

a. Two code blue nurses are assigned from the unit that remains open.
b. The crash cart and defibrillator on the closed unit must still be checked every shift.
C. The code blue response defibrillator will remain on 1East and code blue drugs will

remain in the refrigerator on 1West. It is the responsibility of the code blue RN to check
the crash cart and defibrillator on the closed unit.

d. The charge nurse or designee must check the emergency procedure trays on 1 East and
1 West

ADMITTED PATIENTS WAITING FOR BEDS:

1. Registration staff shall notify the Administrative Supervisor, ANM or Manager when a patient is
to be admitted and a bed is not available.

2, The Administrative Supervisor, ANM or Manager shall assign the appropriate area for direct
admits based on patient assessment, physician orders, and availability.

FORM(S):

1 Closure of NICU Overflow Area-Checklist
2. Closure of Nursing Unit Checklist - Sample
3 Opening of Nursing Unit Checklist - Sample

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1 NICU Policy: NICU Placement: Overflow to Alternate Location (Temporary Overflow) Procedure

23



Patient Care Services
Bed Utilization, Temporary Opening and Closing of Inpatient Beds/Units
Page 3 of 4

Closure of Nursing Unit Checklist
Location: Date: Person(s) Completing:

O Confirm the appropriate beds are available after all transfers and /or discharges are complete
O Complete Narcotic check on medication Pyxis (inventory)

Notify the Following: (These task may be delegated to an Unit Secretary)

Administrative Supervisor (AS) Private Branch Exchange (PBX)
Staffing Office Notify the Monitor Technician (MT)
Pharmacy (to turn off Pyxis access) Environmental Services
Information Technology (IT) /AS (nights/weekends) Food & Nutrition

{Notify to “shut down” printers) Security

Facilities Management Medical Records

Security

guipment Checks & Storage as follows (or per Unit quidelines):

Crash Cart - Document on Crash Cart Checklist "Unit Closed" in the appropriate date field

Plug in infusion pumps - store in a patient room

Plug in Work Station on Wheels/WOWSs and store in a locked room

Place clean bedside commodes - in a patient room

Place visitor's chairs in patient's room

Store glucometer, doppler, pulse oximeter and other unit specific equipment in Medication Room
Store Crash Cart and Defibrillator in Medication Room

Nurse Locators - Place in the supply room located near the nurse's station

Patient Charts — Store empty charts in designated area

Patient Medications - transfer with patient or return medications to Pharmacy

o0 0OoO0o0o
oooooo

Ob0OoOooooooo

Verify Patient PHI information is secured - if PHI is found, discard in Shred Bin. Check the unit for the following:
Check all drawers and cabinets to ensure there is no unsecured PHI or logs with patient information

Patient census

SBAR and hand-off forms with patient information

TASK list

Check Physician's dictation room (including copier) for any PHI

Check all printers for PHI

Check all patient rooms for PHI

Check all supply rooms for PHI

elemetry boxes and lead wires:

Count Telemetry Transmitters (boxes) and lead wires. # of Telemetry boxes = # of Lead wires =
Open battery latch to prevent battery contact with latch or remove batteries
Store clean Telemetry boxes and lead wires in wire baskets above the sink near nurses' station

eaning Requirements:
Notify Environmental services to clean unit

Verify each patient room is clean
Turn off the lights and close doors of each patient room
Turn off the lights in Physician Dictation Room, Supply Rooms, etc

OO0 oooocoooo

o

rn off power on the following:
Computer monitors
Pharmacy fax machine
Telemetry monitoring screens
Copier and printer to be turned off after 2 hours and final sweep for PHI (shared copier may be left on.
Forward phones to designated unit if applicable
Close fire doors to unit and ensure they are locked
Turn off the lights on the unit.
Place unit keys in the ANM Office
*Fax completed form to the Regulatory Compliance Specialist at 760-806-4645

OoDo0O0oo0oooolg oooo

24



Patient Care Services

Bed Utilization
Page 4 of 4
Opening of Nursing Unit Checklist

Location: Date: Person(s) Completing:
O Confirm the need to open beds are available after all transfers and /or discharges are complete
a Complete Narcotic check on medication Pyxis (inventory)
Notify the Following: (These task may be ge_legenwtoan—lmltSecnam
O Administrative Supervisor (AS) Private Branch Exchange (PBX)
O Staffing Office E] Notify the Monitor Technician (MT)
O Pharmacy (to turn on Pyxis access) O Environmental Services
a information Technology (IT) /AS (nights/weekends) O Food & Nutrition

(Notify to turn on printers) O Medical Records
O Facilittes Management
a Security
Equipment Checks - Return equipment to operating locations and plug them into a power source:
O Crash Cart — Mark off the days the unit was closed on Crash Cart Checklist as "Unit Closed"
O Unlock supplies and equipment.
O Nurse Locators
O Patient Charts
O Check the expiration date on food left in the refrigerator as applicable

Verify Patient PHI information is secured - Check the unit for the following:

Check all drawers and cabinets to ensure there is no unsecured PHI or logs with patient information
Patient census - discard in the Shred Bin

SBAR and hand-off forms with patient information - discard in the Shred Bin

TASK list - discard in the Shred Bin

Check Physician's dictation room (including copier) for any PHI

Check all printers for PHI

Check all patient rooms for PHI

Check all supply rooms for PHI

lemetry boxes and lead wires:
Count Telemetry Transmitters (boxes) and lead wires. # of Telemetry boxes = # of Lead wires =
Place new batteries in Telemetry boxes for assigned beds
Store clean Telemetry boxes and lead wires in wire baskets above the sink near nurses' station

eaning Reguirements:

Notify Environmental services to clean unit as needed
Verify each patient room is clean

Turn on the lights and open doors of each patient room
Turn on the lights in Physician Dictation Room

O00 Doooooog

2]

S oooo

rn on power on the following:

Computer monitors

Pharmacy fax machine

Telemetry monitoring screens

Copier and printer wait sufficient time for cued jobs to print and secure PHI
Cancel forward on phones as if applicable, confirm telephones are working
Open fire doors to unit

Turn on the lights on the unit.

DDDDDDDI

*Fax completed form to the Regulatory Compliance Specialist at 760-806-4645

25



T

a . . . . .
l ‘C\) Tri-City Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care § ;ﬁﬁﬁgig
PROCEDURE: BLOOD PRODUCTS ADMINISTRATION

Purpose: To outline the nursing care and management of adult/adolescent/pediatric/newborn
patients receiving blood or blood products. This includes packed red blood cells (PRCs),
irradiated blood products, platelet concentrates, and fresh frozen plasma.

Supportive Data:  Blood and blood products are unlike other intravenous medications administered due to
the human/organic nature of the substance. Special precautions and timeliness are
required for proper management of the patient receiving a transfusion. A patient
recelvmg blood must be accompanled by a nurse when Ieavmg the nursing floor.

AII non- autologous PRCs
and all platelet pheresis products used at this hospital are leuko-reduced.

Equipment: Blood Product

1. Blood Administration Set with a 170 micron filter
2. Normal Saline
3. IV Electronic Infusion Pump
4. Automatic BP machine
5. Pressure pump bag (if indicated)
Al DEFINITIONS
1. Qualified transfusionists are:
a. Registered Nurses (RN) who have completed annual/ongoing competency in
blood/blood product administration;
b. Aanesthesiologists
4c. -andinsurgerrpPerfusionists in surgery.

B. PROCEDURE

1. Refer to Mosby’s Nursing Skills procedure: Blood Products: Administering for complete
information.

2. Confirm patient identity using two-identifier system. Refer to Patient Care Services Policy
“ldentification, Patient> (MV-A)-pelicy.

3. Verify order and complete a Transfusion Request Form
a. A nurse will verify that patient has received, read and understands, “A Patient's Guide to

Blood Transfusions”. The nurse will also verify that the patient has had opportunity to

discuss this process with their physician.

i. After reviewing the copy of “A Patient's Guide to Blood Transfusions” if the
patient, parent, conservator or guardian refuses to permit the use of blood or
blood derivatives in their care or the care of the patient, the patient will date, time
and sign the refusal section of the consent.

ii. When a patient is a minor or physically or mentally incapable of understanding
and signing the consent, a parent, conservator or guardian may sign. CheckAr
—X—is-plased-in the box; which indicates the relationship of the signature for
consent.

b. Obtain patient’s signature on consent form, if not previously signed, for all blood
products from Transfusion Service.

i. Notify physician-ordering blood if patient has not received informed consent
regarding blood administration.

c. Record ID number from the Transfusion Service identification band on Transfusion
Request Form.
4, Obtain blood products from the Transfusion Service:

Clinical Nursing Blood Utilization Rharmacy-& Medical Professional
De;:vr:r:;nt Policies & Executive ~ Review Fherapoutics Executive Affairs gi‘::::tt’o‘:;

Procedures Council Committee Commites Committes Committee

5/94, 7/09;
) (109 05/12;03/13; 05/12;3/13; 06/12;6/13, . )

10/10;5/12 o115 2118 04/17 o747 0817 07/12;7/13 07/12;7/13

26



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Blood Products Administration

Page 2 of 5

5.

a.
b.

Only Tri-City Medical Center employees may pick up blood products from the lab.
Transfusion Services will use a dual bag system to protect patients’ privacy and
contain possible spillage of blood products not transported in a cooler. Single and
double units will be placed in a reclosable clear plastic bag. This clear plastic bag
will be placed in a white bag Iabeled “Handle w1th Care: Human Blood Ie—eentam

Initiate the transfusion within 30 rr{inutes of obtaining it from the Transfusion Service

a-b.

It is permissible to start the transfusion even if it is delayed more than 30 minutes from
issue as long as the entire unit can be infused within 4 hours of issue. After 4 hours the
remainder of the unit must be discarded.

i. Blood and blood products that are not going to be transfused should be
returned to the Transfusion Service immediately, as they are temperature
sensitive.

ii. Any unused blood or blood product unit, if not transfused should be
returned to the Transfusion Service.

&lii. Do not store blood products in any refrigerator outside of the Transfusion
Service.

EXCEPTION: Surgery-Areas designated by the laboratory may be issued ice chests

to store blood while waiting to be transfused-intra-eperatively. Ice blocks are good for 6

hours, after which they must be switched for fresh ice blocks. The blood bank monitors

the time limit of the ice blocks. Any remaining units of blood in the ice chest at the

conclusmn of the procedure must be returned to blood bank.

Venfy the foIIowmg mformatnon from blood products unit tag, patlent chart, and patlent
information from attached armbands with another RN (in Operating Room may verify
information with a Perfusionist/Anesthesiologist. The RN /perfusionist/anesthesiologist
administering the blood products must participate in the verification process.

a.

oo

ef.

£g.

g-h.

Unit tag, armband number highlighted on forms must match the number on the

Transfusion Service identification band attached to the patient.

i Return blood product to Transfusion Services if number does not match.

Patient's name and medical record number on hospital armband with unit tag and

Transfusion Record form.

Type of blood product issued matches blood product ordered by Physician.

Blood group and Rh type on blood product label matches blood group and Rh type on

unit tags and for red cell products is compatible with patient’s blood group and Rh type

on the unit tags.

b, Platelet and cryoprecipitate ABO/Rh types may not matchbe-cempatible the
patient’s blood ABO/Rh but are compatible to be transfused. Call the
Transfusion Service with questions concerning ABO/Rh compatibility.

Donor unit number on blood product label matches donor unit number on unit tag and

Transfusion Record form.

Expiration date/time on blood product label has not elapsed.

i If the expiration date is the current calendar day, the blood products must be
infused by midnight or the remainder discarded at midnight.

Compatibility status if blood product is red blood cell unit.

Document verification on Transfusion Record form and Blood Administration Powerform.

Pressure Pump/Bag may be used if blood needs to be infused at a rapid rate.

27



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Blood Products Administration

Page 3 of 5

10.
11.

12.
13.

314,

13:15.

14-16.

a. Use only external pressure devices equipped with a pressure gauge, and that exert
uniform pressure against all parts of the blood container.
b. Maintain 300 mmHg or less when pressure transfusing blood components as higher

pressures may cause bag rupture or hemolysis through small-gauge lines.

Blood may be infused using an electronic infusion device.

Blood warmer may be used. Use only equipment specifically designed to warm blood product

and maintain blood warmer temperature at specified temperature for equipment used

throughout transfusion.

Document temperature of blood warmer on Transfusion Record form.

Intravenous (IV) push medication may only be given via the lowest injection port while the

normal saline is infusing immediately before or after transfusing the blood product.

Change the blood administration set after 4 hours. Up to 2 units may be given with each set if

the total infusion time is less than or equal to 4 hours.

Assess and document vital signs (including blood pressure, heart rate, respiratory rate, and

temperature) on Blood Administration Powerform:

a. pPre-transfusion

i. It is recommended that vital signs be obtained immediately prior to
initiating a transfusion not to exceed 1-2 hours prior to the transfusion
initiation

15 minutes after blood product;

1 hour after blood product initiated

then-eEvery 1 hour until blood product infused-and

ilmmediately post transfusion.

m’P-PP'

an aa-_hlooo - n o _Nnoar - al~ta a¥u -

domplete Transfusion Record and Blood 'Administra:tion Powerform ihcluding documer;tation of
amount of blood product infused and any adverse reactions and place the chart copy of the
Transfusion Record in the laboratory section of the patient’s chart. Return the Blood Bank copy
to the Lab.

a. Document any adverse reactions on the Transfusion Reaction section of the Blood
Administration Powerform.
b. A form must be completed for each unit of blood product transfused.

Upon discharge of Outpatients, provide patient with an “Outpatient Post Transfusion Reaction”
information sheet.
Initiate Blood Transfusion Reaction process for suspected transfusion reaction.

a. Check unit and patient information to verify that the unit was started on the correct
patient.

b. See Mosby's Nursing Skills Transfusions: Reaction Management

c. Complete Reaction section of the Blood Administration Powerform and the Transfusion
Record form.

d. Send blood product with attached blood administration set, the printed Blood

Administration form, the Blood Bank Transfusion Record, record forms and first void
urine specimen to Transfusion Service.

. Dispose of blood product containers, and administration sets in red bags, if no transfusion
reaction.

28



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Blood Products Administration

Page 4 of 5

C. Special Considerations For: Pediatric/Neonatal
1. A nurse will verify that patient/parent/legal guardian has received, read and understands a

2.

arw

patient guide to blood transfusion. The nurse will also verify that the patient/parent/legal
guardian has had opportunity to discuss this process with their physician. Obtain consent for
blood and blood products administration from parents.

Verify Newborn Screening has been obtained prior to the first PRC transfusion providing Hct
greater than 25 or as ordered by the physician.

Ensure that all blood products are CMV negative for newborns or per physician order.

Consult with physician regarding the use of irradiated blood and donor specific blood.

"Double check" all blood products prior to administration to ensure that the proper blood is
administered to the infant in the neonatal intensive care (NICU).

Administer all blood products via an Alaris pump-syringe-medule except with exchange
transfusions.

Prime tubing with blood product and attach to T-connector or double or triple lumen connector
tubing.

Administer blood products through largest bore catheter available (24 gauge minimum
recommended).

Transfuse PRCs per physician order.

Allow blood products to warm to room temperature (approximately 20 minutes) prior to
administration to reduce thermal stress.

Transfuse blood over time specified by physician order, but not more than 4 hours. If transfusion
orders require infusion greater than 4 hours, request smaller aliquots from the Transfusion
Service.

Use a controlled blood warmer when performing large volume transfusions (exchange
transfusions).

Document, to the nearest tenth of an mL, the amount of blood product infused in the electronic
healthmedisal record (EHR).

D. Special Considerations For: Intraoperative Reinfusion of Processed Blood
1.

Processed units will use a new setviaflex-bag each time.

Label each unit with patient’s full name, Medical Record Number, date, time of start of
collection, time of expiration and for “Autologous Use Only”, at time of collection.

Reinfusion of intra operatively processed blood must begin within 6 hours of end of collection.
Blood collected intra operatively is to be transfused to the donor only.

Contraindicated in cases of sepsis or malignancy.

E. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

8-1.

Patient Care Services Constavac, Reinfusion of Blood Procedure

| E-F. REFERENCES:

Transfusion Therapy Guidelines for Nurses, National Blood Resource Education Program,
Public Health Service of National Institutes of Health, U.S. Department of Health/Human
Services.

Stryker Constavac Blood Conversion (CBC) System Operating Instructions, 98. See TCMC

29



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Blood Products Administration
Page 5 of §

40.3. Technlcal Manual Amencan Assomatlon of Blood Banks, 17th Edition, 2011.

34. Blood Utilization Review Committee. Chair, Gary Wilcox, M.D., 2000.

45, AWHONN Core Curriculum for Neonatal Intensive Care Nursmg, Deacon, J, and O'Neil, P
(Eds), 2*-5" Edition, W. B. Saunders, Philadelphia 1999.

H——GCAT-SFresenius-Manuak2™ Edition 1008

12— Cell-SaverManual:

43-6. American Blood Banks Association,Standards for Blood Banks and Transfusion Services, 27"
Edlctlon Bethes"a AABB 2011

45-7. Merenstein, G.B., Gardner, S.L. (20112006). Handbook of Neonatal Intensive Care, 76th
Edition. Mosby-Elsevier: Philidelphia, PA.

30



2) . , o { CLEAN COPY ||
(Q) Tri-City Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care §
PROCEDURE: BLOOD PRODUCTS ADMINISTRATION
Purpose: To outline the nursing care and management of adult/adolescent/pediatric/newborn

patients receiving blood or blood products. This includes packed red blood cells (PRCs),
irradiated blood products, platelet concentrates, and fresh frozen plasma.

Supportive Data:  Blood and blood products are unlike other intravenous medications administered due to
the human/organic nature of the substance. Special precautions and timeliness are
required for proper management of the patient receiving a transfusion. A patient
receiving blood must be accompanied by a nurse when leaving the nursing floor.

All non-autologous PRCs and all platelet pheresis products used at this hospital are
leuko-reduced.

Equipment: Blood Product

Blood Administration Set with a 170 micron filter

Normal Saline

IV Electronic Infusion Pump

Automatic BP machine

Pressure pump bag (if indicated)

aOhON~

A. DEFINITIONS:
1. Qualified transfusionists are:
a. Registered Nurses (RN) who have completed annual/ongoing competency in
blood/blood product administration
b. Anesthesiologists
C. Perfusionists in surgery.

B. PROCEDURE:
1. Refer to Mosby’s Nursing Skills procedure: Blood Products: Administering for complete
information.
2, Confirm patient identity using two-identifier system. Refer to Patient Care Services Policy
Identification, Patient.
3. Verify order and complete a Transfusion Request Form
a. A nurse will verify that patient has received, read and understands, “A Patient's Guide to

Blood Transfusions”. The nurse will also verify that the patient has had opportunity to

discuss this process with their physician.

i. After reviewing the copy of “A Patient's Guide to Blood Transfusions” if the
patient, parent, conservator or guardian refuses to permit the use of blood or
biood derivatives in their care or the care of the patient, the patient will date, time
and sign the refusal section of the consent.

ii. When a patient is a minor or physically or mentally incapable of understanding
and signing the consent, a parent, conservator or guardian may sign. Check the
box which indicates the relationship of the signature for consent.

b. Obtain patient’s signature on consent form, if not previously signed, for all blood
products from Transfusion Service.

i. Notify physician-ordering blood if patient has not received informed consent
regarding blood administration.

C. Record ID number from the Transfusion Service identification band on Transfusion
Request Form.
4, Obtain blood products from the Transfusion Service:
a. Only Tri-City Medical Center employees may pick up blood products from the lab.
b. Transfusion Services will use a dual bag system to protect patients’ privacy and contain
R | CiReolees | eeciw | oeiew | Seeue | owme | Bowdot
Council Committee Committee Committee

5/94, 7/09;
10/10;5/12 05/12;03/13; 01/15 05/12;3/13; 2/15 04/17 06/12;6/13, 08/17 07/12;7/13 07/12;7/13




Patient Care Services
Blood Products Administration

Page 2 of 4

10.
11.

12.

possible spillage of blood products not transported in a cooler. Single and double units
will be placed in a reclosable clear plastic bag. This clear plastic bag will be placed in a
white bag labeled “Handle with Care: Human Blood.

Initiate the transfusion within 30 minutes of obtaining it from the Transfusion Service

a. It is permissible to start the transfusion even if it is delayed more than 30 minutes from
issue as long as the entire unit can be infused within 4 hours of issue. After 4 hours the
remainder of the unit must be discarded.

i. Blood and blood products that are not going to be transfused should be returned
to the Transfusion Service immediately, as they are temperature sensitive.

ii. Any unused blood or blood product unit, if not transfused should be returned to
the Transfusion Service.

iii. Do not store blood products in any refrigerator outside of the Transfusion
Service.

b. Exception: Areas designated by the laboratory may be issued ice chests to store blood
while waiting to be transfused. Ice blocks are good for 6 hours, after which they must be
switched for fresh ice blocks. The blood bank monitors the time limit of the ice
blocks. Any remaining units of blood in the ice chest at the conclusion of the procedure
must be returned to blood bank.

Verify the following information from blood products, unit tag, patient chart, and patient

information from attached armbands with another RN (in Operating Room may verify

information with a Perfusionist/Anesthesiologist. The RN/perfusionist/anesthesiologist
administering the blood products must participate in the verification process.

a. Unit tag, armband number highlighted on forms must match the number on the
Transfusion Service identification band attached to the patient.

i. Return blood product to Transfusion Services if number does not match.

b. Patient's name and medical record number on hospital armband with unit tag and

Transfusion Record form.

Type of blood product issued matches blood product ordered by Physician.

Blood group and Rh type on blood product label matches blood group and Rh type on

unit tags and for red cell products is compatible with patient's blood group and Rh type

on the unit tags.

i. Platelet and cryoprecipitate ABO/Rh types may not match the patient’s blood
ABO/Rh but are compatible to be transfused. Call the Transfusion Service with
questions concerning ABO/Rh compatibility.

e. Donor unit number on blood product label matches donor unit number on unit tag and
Transfusion Record form.

f. Expiration date/time on blood product label has not elapsed.

i. If the expiration date is the current calendar day, the blood products must be
infused by midnight or the remainder discarded at midnight.

g. Compatibility status if blood product is red blood cell unit.

oo

h. Document verification on Transfusion Record form and Blood Administration Powerform.

Pressure Pump/Bag may be used if blood needs to be infused at a rapid rate.

a. Use only external pressure devices equipped with a pressure gauge, and that exert
uniform pressure against all parts of the blood container.

b. Maintain 300 mmHg or less when pressure transfusing blood components as higher

pressures may cause bag rupture or hemolysis through small-gauge lines.
Blood may be infused using an electronic infusion device.
Blood warmer may be used. Use only equipment specifically designed to warm blood product
and maintain blood warmer temperature at specified temperature for equipment used
throughout transfusion.
Document temperature of blood warmer on Transfusion Record form.
Intravenous (1V) push medication may only be given via the lowest injection port while the
normal saline is infusing immediately before or after transfusing the blood product.
Change the blood administration set after 4 hours. Up to 2 units may be given with each set if

32



Patient Care Services
Blood Products Administration
Page 3 of 4

C.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

the total infusion time is less than or equal to 4 hours.
Assess and document vital signs (including blood pressure, heart rate, respiratory rate, and
temperature) on Blood Administration Powerform:
a. Pre-transfusion
i. It is recommended that vital signs be obtained immediately prior to initiating a
transfusion not to exceed 1-2 hours prior to the transfusion initiation

b. 15 minutes after blood product

c. 1 hour after blood product initiated

d. Every 1 hour until blood product infused
e. Immediately post transfusion.

Complete Transfusion Record and Blood Administration Powerform including documentation of
amount of blood product infused and any adverse reactions and place the chart copy of the
Transfusion Record in the laboratory section of the patient’s chart. Return the Blood Bank copy
to the Lab.

a. Document any adverse reactions on the Transfusion Reaction section of the Blood
Administration Powerform.
b. A form must be completed for each unit of blood product transfused.

Upon discharge of Outpatients, provide patient with an “Outpatient Post Transfusion Reaction”
information sheet.
Initiate Blood Transfusion Reaction process for suspected transfusion reaction.

a. Check unit and patient information to verify that the unit was started on the correct
patient.

b. See Mosby's Nursing Skills Transfusions: Reaction Management

o} Complete Reaction section of the Blood Administration Powerform and the Transfusion

Record form.

d. Send blood product with attached blood administration set, the printed Blood
Administration form, the Blood Bank Transfusion Record, record forms and first void
urine specimen to Transfusion Service.

Dispose of blood product containers, and administration sets in red bags, if no transfusion

reaction.

Special Considerations For: Pediatric/Neonatal

1.

ok D

No

11.

12.

A nurse will verify that patient/parent/legal guardian has received, read and understands a
patient guide to blood transfusion. The nurse will also verify that the patient/parent/legal
guardian has had opportunity to discuss this process with their physician. Obtain consent for
blood and blood products administration from parents.

Verify Newborn Screening has been obtained prior to the first PRC transfusion providing Hct
greater than 25 or as ordered by the physician.

Ensure that all blood products are CMV negative for newborns or per physician order.
Consult with physician regarding the use of irradiated blood and donor specific blood.
"Double check” all blood products prior to administration to ensure that the proper blood is
administered to the infant in the neonatal intensive care (NICU).

Administer all blood products via an Alaris pump except with exchange transfusions.

Prime tubing with blood product and attach to T-connector or double or triple lumen connector
tubing.

Administer blood products through largest bore catheter available (24 gauge minimum
recommended).

Transfuse PRCs per physician order.

Allow blood products to warm to room temperature (approximately 20 minutes) prior to
administration to reduce thermal stress.

Transfuse blood over time specified by physician order, but not more than 4 hours. If transfusion
orders require infusion greater than 4 hours, request smaller aliquots from the Transfusion
Service.

Use a controlled blood warmer when performing large volume transfusions (exchange

33



Patient Care Services
Blood Products Administration
Page 4 of 4

transfusions).
13. Document, to the nearest tenth of an mL, the amount of blood product infused in the electronic
health record (EHR).

D. Special Considerations For: Intraoperative Reinfusion of Processed Blood
1.

Processed units will use a new set each time.
2, Label each unit with patient’s full name, Medical Record Number, date, time of start of
collection, time of expiration and for “Autologous Use Only”, at time of collection.

3. Reinfusion of intra operatively processed blood must begin within 6 hours of end of collection.
4, Blood collected intra operatively is to be transfused to the donor only.
5. Contraindicated in cases of sepsis or malignancy.
E. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Patient Care Services Constavac, Reinfusion of Blood Procedure
F. REFERENCES:
1. Transfusion Therapy Guidelines for Nurses, National Blood Resource Education Program,
Public Health Service of National Institutes of Health, U.S. Department of Health/Human
Services.

2, Stryker Constavac Blood Conversion (CBC) System Operating Instructions, 98. See TCMC

Equipment Manual.

Technical Manual, American Association of Blood Banks, 17th Edition, 2011.

Blood Utilization Review Committee. Chair, Gary Wilcox, M.D., 2000.

AWHONN Core Curriculum for Neonatal Intensive Care Nursing, Deacon, J, and O'Neil, P

(Eds), 5™ Edition, W. B. Saunders, Philadelphia 1999.

6. American Blood Banks Association,Standards for Blood Banks and Transfusion Services, 27"
Ediction: Bethe*’a, AABB, 2011

7. Merenstein, G.B., Gardner, S.L. (2011). Handbook of Neonatal Intensive Care, 7th Edition.
Mosby-Elsevier: Philidelphia, PA.

s



)
‘C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

12/01 SUBJECT: Chain of Command

REVISION DATE: 06/03, 12/04, 10/05, 03/10, 06/13 POLICY NUMBER: I.J

Department Approval-Date{s): 04/1604/17
Clinical Policies and& Procedures Committee Approval: 05/4606/17
Nurse Executive Council Approval: 051607/17
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 06/1608/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 07/16
Board of Directors Approval: 07/16
A. PURPOSE:
1. Chain of Command provides employees an expeditious process to resoive administrative,

clinical, or other patient safety or service issues in order to provide safe patient care. All
employees are encouraged to use the chain of command to present an issue of concern and
pass it up the lines of authority until a resolution is reached. In situations where the safety of the
patient or of employees, visitors, and others does not allow time for use of the chain of
command, employees shall take the concern to the highest level he/she deems necessary.

POLICY:

1. Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) will not tolerate any acts of reprisal against those who raise
issues concerning quality patient care.

2. All TCHD employees and health care providers (HCP) are responsible for ensuring that
patients receive quality care and should implement chain of command to obtain necessary
patient care interventions when the quality of care or safety of a patient is in question.

3. Examples of when to implement the chain of command may, include but are not limited to the
following:

a An unresolvable issue creating a patient care/safety concern.

b A conflict delaying or preventing the provision of patient services.

c A disruption in a-services(s) that cannot be resolved in an appropriate timeframe.

ad. A conflict exists concerning the plan of care/physician orders for the patient.

be. The plan of care is unclear and caregiver is unable to get clarification from physician.

ef Qualified care professional providers are unavailable: Registered Nurses (RNs),
physicians, and other essential care providers.

d-g.  Unprofessional behavior by or impairment of the healthcare providers that jeopardize
patient care.

e-h.  Instances where a physician has not responded in a timely manner to a deteriorating
patient condition.

. The RNs assessment of the patient varies significantly from physician’s assessment.

&i- In clinical situations where the RN believes the physician has not responded in a manner
to fully address the issues raised, that may present an immediate risk to the patient.

4, Occurrence of an event in an area that disrupts operations and affects the public or may

warrant regulatory notification:
a. Contact immediately, Monday through Friday, Area Manager/Director who will call
their Area Chief and Area Chief to notify Chief Executive Officer (CEO).

35



Patient Care Services

Chain of Command

Page 2 of 3
4.5,
5.6.
6:7.
8.
C.

1.

b. Contact immediately nights, holidays, Saturday and/or Sunday, Administrative
Supervisor (AS) who will call the Clinical Administrator on Call and Administrator
on Call to notify the CEO.

The next level of authority shall be contacted if issues are not resolved in an appropriate time

frame. Progression continues through the levels of authority until the issue is resolved.

a. In some instances, one or more levels may be passed over dueup to the area Chief or
CEO due to extremely sensitive subjects or when the higher level of authority may be
the individual involved.

For conflicts that cannot be resolved between employees related to patient care/safety issues,

the order in which the lines of authority shall be contacted are as follows:

a. The employees shall attempt to address and resolve conflict outside of the patient care
area.

b. If unresolved, then the Supervisor on Duty/Department Supervisor-Assistant-Nurse

Manager is notified.

If unresolved, then the Clirisal-Manager and/or Administrative-Supervisor-AS is notified.

If unresolved, then the Director is notified.

If unresolved, then the Senior Director is notified.

If unresolved, then the Ghief-Nurse-Exesutive{CNE)Area Chief is notified.

For conflicts involving physicians/Allied Health Professionals (AHP) the order in which the lines

of authority shall be contacted upon initiation of chain of command is as follows:

a. The HCP shall contact the Assistant-Nurse-ManragerDepartment Supervisor/Manager

in a confidential manner to express concerns.

If unresolved, the Clirisal-Manager and/or Administrative-Supervisor-AS is notified.

If unresolved, the Director is notified.

If unresolved, the Senior Director is notified.

If unresolved, the SenierExecutiveClinical Administrator on Call and e«

unavailable-the-Administrator on Call is notified.

f. If unresolved, the Medical-BirestorDepartment/Division Chair of the identified
department/division is notified.

g. If unresolved, the Chief Of Medical Staff and CEO isare notified

h. If unresolved, the President/Chief Executive Officer is notified.

The Administrative-Supervisor-AS is available as a resource when contacting all levels of
authority.

~o oo

PaoyoT

PROCEDURE FOR CONTACTING PHYSICIANS:

For instances when a call is placed to a physician and the physician has not responded
in a timely manner:
a. Urgent situations:

i. If the physician has not returned the call within five (5) minutes, the HCP
will contact Private Branch Exchange (PBX) for assistance in contacting
the physician.

ii. PBX will make several attempts to contact the physician. If the physician
has still not responded within thirty (30) minutes, PBX will notify the AS of
the lack of physician response. The AS will contact the HCP for additional
information regarding the situation.

iil. The AS will contact the Chief of Service.

iv. The AS will contact the Clinical On-Call as needed.

b. Non-urgent situations:

i If the physician has not returned the call within thirty (30) minutes, the HCP
will contact PBX for assistance in contacting the physician.

iii. PBX will make several attempts to contact the physician. If the physician
has still not responded within one (1) hour, PBX will notify the AS of the
lack of physician response. The AS will contact the HCP for additional
information regarding the situation.

36



Patient Care Services
Chain of Command
Page 3 0of 3

| Hil.  The AS will contact the Chief of Service as needed.

| &-D. DOCUMENTATION:
1. The HCP shall document the following in the medical record under clinical notes without
including personal opinions:
a. Date, time, and name of person contacted
b. Events and observations objectively as they occur
c. Specific facts and accurate times
2. Quality review report (QRR) shall be completed and submitted to Risk Management.

| B-E. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Administrative Policy: Incident Report — Quality Review Report (QRR) RL Solutions 396

37



@) Tri-City Medical Center TRACKED
Oceanside, California CHANGES

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 10/05 SUBJECT: Hand-Off, Communication

REVISION DATE: 02/06, 01/08, 07/08, 04/09, 08/12 POLICY NUMBER: IV.F

Department Approval: 05/17
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 06/4207/17
Nursing Executive Committee Approval: 06/4207/17
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 07/4208/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 08/12
Board of Directors Approval: 08/12

A PURPOSE:
1. To improve the effectiveness or communication among caregivers.
42. To provide a consistent, standardized, interactive approach to hand-off communications
between patient caregivers-iraccordance-with-2012-National-Patient-Safety-Geal-02.03.01.
2:3. To ensure healthcare providers communicate new, changes or updates in patient information
throughout a shift using a standardized communication process.

B. DEFINITION(S):
1. Health Care Team: A Registered Nurse (RN), or Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA)/Advanced

Care Technician (ACT) assigned to a nursing unit.

2. Safety Hand-Off: Providing safety information including, but not limited to:

Patient name, diagnosis

Orientation (for example alert, confused, forgetful)

Code status, if applicable

Isolation status, if applicable

Communication barriers (hard of hearing, legally blind, non-English speaking), if

applicable
f. Patient safety concerns, for example fall risk, conditions affecting ability to

transfer safely

3. SBAR (Situation-Background-Assessment-Recommendation): a technique that provides
a framework for communication between members of the health care team about a
patient’s condition.

Popop

a. Situation: concise statement(s) identifying the problem
b. Background: Pertinent and brief details (information) that relates to the situation
c. Assessment: your patient assessment findings, lab results, diagnostic results

a-d. Recommendation: suggested treatments, medications, plan of care etc., that will
decrease or resolve the situation

C. POLICY:

1. Healthcare providers shall use the Situation,-Background -Assessment-Recommendations
(SBAR} process when providing senduscting-hand-off communication.

2. Hand-off communication shall:



Patient Care Services
Hand-Off, Communication

Page 2 of 5
3.
4.
b-5.
D.

E.

a. Be accurate, clear, complete, and include information about the patient’s care,
treatments and required services.

b. Include an opportunity for verbal communication and allow for face-to-face or telephone
interaction, so questions or concerns about a patient’s care can be asked and
answered.

i Clarification and validation techniques shall be utilized to make sure there is a
common understanding about expectations.

c. Include information about a patient’s current condition and recent or anticipated
changes.

d_ Hand-OffRounds: e e =l A e e = S N b (] W G r=Ee e e

i § ing shift-to-shift hand-off communication
will include rounding by the on-coming and off-going nurses.

A consistent method for patient hand-off communication shall be conducted throughout the

organization during the following:

a. Change of shift

b. Break relief

c. Prior to the transfer of care to another nursing unit

e—d Prior to and after transfer of care to another department for a procedureftest, i.e.
radiology, surgery, cardiac catherization, inpatient dialysis unit
fe. Prior to transferring/discharging a patient to another facility

patichis
Shift Team Update: A brief verbal communication between licensed staff (RN) and ACTs to
provide pertinent information regarding individual patient assignments.

a. Shift team updates shall be initiated by the on-coming healthcare team after shift-to-shift
hand-off communication.
b. Shift Team Updates shall continue throughout the shift as needed, to improve

communication between all members of the health care team.
If patient is transported and unaccompanied by a licensed nurse, nurse shall provide a
safety hand-off to the transporter.

HAND-OFF COMMUNICATION REFERENCES:

1.

The following references may be used to providefer hand-off communications:

a. History and Physical

b. Electronic Health Record (EHR) patient care applications Appropriate-Cerner
i i.e. Qorders, Llabs, \vital Ssigns

b.c. Electronic kardex

e-d. Electronic Medication Administration Record (eMAR)

d-e. Medication Administration Record (MAR) summary

ef, Physician’s Orders

£g. Physician's Progress Notes

g=h. Chart Summary Screen

hi. SBAR Shift-to Shift Hand-off Communication form

NURSING SHIFT-TO-SHIFT HAND-OFF / TRANSFER OF CARE TO ANOTHER NURSISNG UNIT:

1.

May include but is not limited to:

a. Patient Information (name, age, physician, diagnosis)
b. Code status

c. Isolation status

d. Allergies

39



Patient Care Services
Hand-Off, Communication
Page 3 of 5

~F @™o

a.
b.

Abnormal assessment findings (labs, vital signs, physical assessment)

Pertinent Physician Orders

Any patient safety concerns (i.e. falls, medications that may contribute to falls, seizure
precautions, and/or equipment)

Case management/social service concerns related to the plan of care
Medications/key interventions requiring follow-up by given-bythe receiving unit or
oncoming shift

i. Pain level and time pain medication was last given, if applicable

3-2.  Surgical Services hand-off shall include nursing shift-to-shift hand-off information as well as:

All pertinent pre/post-surgical/procedural information
Whereabouts of family and belongings

| EF. BREAK RELIEF:

NoOoG~WN 2

Patient information (name, age, physician, diagnosis)

Current condition and status (level of consciousness, vital signs)
Code status

Isolation status

Patient safety

Medications or tasks due or in progress--e—bloed-transfusion

Other-specific-concernsfinformationrelated-to-the-break-time-e—cCalls placed to physicians

| H:G. RESPIRATORY CARE PRACTITIONER (RCP) TO RCP:

1. A verbal report, face-to-face, or telephone hand-off shall be conducted.

a.

When verbal report, face-to-face, or telephone hand-off is not possible, a written report

shall be completed by the off-going RCP.

i The off-going RCP written report shall include the hand-off information listed
below.

2. Hand-off shall-may include, but not limited to, the following information:

AT SQ@moeap T

Patient identifiers

Code status

Isolation status

Pulmonary Diagnoses

Time last treatment was conducted

Breath sounds

Vital signs including last pulse oximeter reading
Cough and/or sputum

Mental status including vision or hearing impairments
Abnormal or unusual respiratory conditions (i.e. hemoptysis)
Pertinent lab resuits

40



Patient Care Services
Hand-Off, Communication
Page 4 of 5

Ventilator settings as applicable

m. Patient safety concerns, for example fall risk and conditions affecting ability to
transfer safelyFall-risk

m-n. Medications/key interventions requiring follow-up by given by the oncoming shift

K——PROGEDURE FRANSEERS: (see new procedure)

H. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. TRANSEER TO ANOTHER FACILITY:See-Patient Care Services Policy: Transfer of

Patients-Poliey
M:2. DISCHARGE: SeePatient Care Services Policy: Discharge of Patients-Policy

NJl. REFERENCES:
1. Caruso, E. (2007+=ebruary). The evolution of nurse-to-nurse bedside report on a medical-
surgical cardiology unit. MEDSURG Nursing, 16(1), 17-22.
2. Maxson, P. M., Derby, K. M., Wrobleski, D. M., & Foss, D. M. (2012). Bedside Nurse-to-
NurseHandoff Promotes Patient Safety. MEDSURG Nursing, 21(3), 140-145.

41



Patient Care Services
Hand-Off, Communication

Page 5 of 5

3.

4.

5.

Hand-off communications. (2007). AORN Journal, 86S146-9:10.1016/J.Aorn.2007.11.012
CINAHL Plus

Risenber, L. A., Leisch, J. & Cunningham, J. (2010-Ap+il). Nursing handoffs: A systematic
review of the literature. AJN, American Journal of Nursing, 110(4), 24-34

Patient safety: “a ticket to ride” protects patients off the unit. Nursing 2012, 39 (5), 57-58.
Retrieved from http://www.nursingcenter.com/Inc?journal?Article |D=858666

Patients at this hospital have a “ticket to ride.” Healthcare Benchmarks Qual improv. 2006:
13(9): 102-104

42



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California CLEAN COPY
PATIENT CARE SERVICES
ISSUE DATE: 10/05 SUBJECT: Hand-Off, Communication

REVISION DATE: 02/06, 01/08, 07/08, 04/09, 08/12 POLICY NUMBER: IV.F

1.
2.

3.

Department Approval: 05/17
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 07/17
Nursing Executive Committee Approval: 0717
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 08/12
Board of Directors Approval: 08/12
A. PURPOSE:

To improve the effectiveness or communication among caregivers.

To provide a consistent, standardized, interactive approach to hand-off communications
between patient caregivers.

To ensure healthcare providers communicate new, changes or updates in patient information
throughout a shift using a standardized communication process.

B. DEFINITION(S):

1.

Health Care Team: A Registered Nurse (RN), or Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA)/Advanced
Care Technician (ACT) assigned to a nursing unit.

2. Safety Hand-Off: Providing safety information including, but not limited to:
a. Patient name, diagnosis
b. Orientation (for example alert, confused, forgetful)
c. Code status, if applicable
d. Isolation status, if applicable
e. Communication barriers (hard of hearing, legally blind, non-English speaking), if
applicable
f. Patient safety concerns, for example fall risk, conditions affecting ability to transfer safely
3. SBAR (Situation-Background-Assessment-Recommendation): a technique that provides a
framework for communication between members of the health care team about a patient’s
condition.
a. Situation: concise statement(s) identifying the problem
b. Background: Pertinent and brief details (information) that relates to the situation
c. Assessment: your patient assessment findings, lab results, diagnostic results
d. Recommendation: suggested treatments, medications, plan of care etc., that will
decrease or resolve the situation
C. POLICY:
1. Healthcare providers shall use the SBAR process when providing hand-off communication.
2, Hand-off communication shall:

a. Be accurate, clear, complete, and include information about the patient’s care,
treatments and required services.
b. Include an opportunity for verbal communication and allow for face-to-face or telephone

interaction, so questions or concerns about a patient's care can be asked and answered.
i. Clarification and validation techniques shall be utilized to make sure there is a
common understanding about expectations.



Patient Care Services
Hand-Off, Communication

Page 2 of 3

c. Include information about a patient’s current condition and recent or anticipated
changes.
d. Hand-Off Rounds: shift-to-shift hand-off communication will include rounding by the on-

coming and off-going nurses.
A consistent method for patient hand-off communication shall be conducted throughout the
organization during the following:
Change of shift
Break relief
Prior to the transfer of care to another nursing unit
Prior to and after transfer of care to another department for a procedureftest, i.e.
radiology, surgery, cardiac catherization, inpatient dialysis unit
e. Prior to transferring/discharging a patient to another facility
Shift Team Update: A brief verbal communication between licensed staff (RN) and ACTs to
provide pertinent information regarding individual patient assignments.

coow

a. Shift team updates shall be initiated by the on-coming healthcare team after shift-to-shift
hand-off communication.
b. Shift Team Updates shall continue throughout the shift as needed, to improve

communication between all members of the health care team.
If patient is transported and unaccompanied by a licensed nurse, nurse shall provide a safety
hand-off to the transporter.

D. HAND-OFF COMMUNICATION REFERENCES:

1.

The following references may be used to provide hand-off communications:

History and Physical

Electronic Health Record (EHR) patient care applications i.e. orders, labs, vital signs
Electronic kardex

Electronic Medication Administration Record (eMAR)

Medication Administration Record (MAR) summary

Physician's Orders

Physician's Progress Notes

Chart Summary Screen

SBAR Shift-to Shift Hand-off Communication form

TTamooooTw

E. NURSING SHIFT-TO-SHIFT HAND-OFF / TRANSFER OF CARE TO ANOTHER NURSING UNIT:

1.

May include but is not limited to:

Patient Information (name, age, physician, diagnosis)

Code status

Isolation status

Allergies

Abnormal assessment findings (labs, vital signs, physical assessment)

Pertinent Physician Orders

Any patient safety concerns (i.e. falls, medications that may contribute to falls, seizure
precautions, and/or equipment)

Case management/social service concerns related to the plan of care
Medications/key interventions requiring follow-up by the receiving unit or oncoming shift
i. Pain level and time pain medication was last given, if applicable

Surgical Services hand-off shall include nursing shift-to-shift hand-off information as well as:
a. All pertinent pre/post-surgical/procedural information

b. Whereabouts of family and belongings

T @moaoop

F. BREAK RELIEF:

1.
2.
3.

Patient information (name, age, physician, diagnosis)
Current condition and status (level of consciousness, vital signs)
Code status

44



Patient Care Services
Hand-Off, Communication

Page 3 of 3
4. Isolation status
5. Patient safety
6. Medications or tasks due or in progress
7. Calls placed to physicians
G. RESPIRATORY CARE PRACTITIONER (RCP) TO RCP:

1. A verbal report, face-to-face, or telephone hand-off shall be conducted.

a. When verbal report, face-to-face, or telephone hand-off is not possible, a written report
shall be completed by the off-going RCP.
i. The off-going RCP written report shall include the hand-off information listed

below.
2. Hand-off may include, but not limited to, the following information:

a. Patient identifiers

b. Code status

C. Isolation status

d. Puimonary Diagnoses

e. Time last treatment was conducted

f. Breath sounds

g. Vital signs including last pulse oximeter reading

h. Cough and/or sputum

i. Mental status including vision or hearing impairments

j. Abnormal or unusual respiratory conditions (i.e. hemoptysis)

K. Pertinent lab results

l Ventilator settings as applicable

m. Patient safety concerns, for example fall risk and conditions affecting ability to transfer
safely

n. Medications/key interventions requiring follow-up by given by the oncoming shift

H. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Patient Care Services Policy: Transfer of Patients
2. Patient Care Services Policy: Discharge of Patients

I REFERENCES:

1. Caruso, E. (2007). The evolution of nurse-to-nurse bedside report on a medical-surgical
cardiology unit. MEDSURG Nursing, 16(1), 17-22.

2. Maxson, P. M., Derby, K. M., Wrobleski, D. M., & Foss, D. M. (2012). Bedside Nurse-to-
NurseHandoff Promotes Patient Safety. MEDSURG Nursing, 21(3), 140-145.

3. Hand-off communications. (2007). AORN Journal, 865146-9:10.1016/J.Aorn.2007.11.012
CINAHL Plus

4. Risenber, L. A., Leisch, J. & Cunningham, J. (2010). Nursing handoffs: A systematic review of
the literature. AUN, American Journal of Nursing, 110(4), 24-34

5. Patient safety: “a ticket to ride” protects patients off the unit. Nursing 2012, 39 (5), 57-58.
Retrieved from http://www.nursingcenter.com/inc?journal?Article ID=858666

7. Patients at this hospital have a “ticket to ride.” Healthcare Benchmarks Qual Improv. 2006;
13(9): 102-104




@) . . DELETE - Incorporated into Patient
l ‘ ) Tri-City Medical Cente care services: Plan of Nursing Care

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES POLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 3/02 SUBJECT: Nursing Chain of Command
REVISION DATE: 6/03, 5/05, 4/09, 1/11 POLICY NUMBER: LJ

Department Approval: 42/1604/17

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 41/4402/1706/17

Nursing Executive Committee Approval: 44/449214707/17

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 014/1203/4708/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 02/12

Board of Directors Approval: 02/12

46



2
& Tricity Medical Center TRACKED
Oceanside, California CHANGES
Plan for Nursing Care
I PURPOSE
A The hospital-wide plan for the provision of services is designed to assure:
l 1. Patient Care Services (PCS) are appropriately integrated throughout the organization;
2. Adequate resources are available to assess, plan, deliver, manage, and evaluate patient
care;
3. The design of patient care services provided throughout the organization is appropriate
to the scope and level of care required by the patients served;
4. Uniform performance of patlent care is provided throughout the organization.
B. The hospital-wide plan for the provision of services is reviewed at least annually or as deemed
necessary due to changing patient populations or other internal or external factors such as:
1. Patient care requirements;
2. The Hospital's recruitment, retention, and staff development capabilities;
3. Information from performance improvement, risk management, utilization management,

safety reviews and other evaluation activities;

4, Evaluation of innovations and improvements in patient care;

5. Affiliations, managed care contracts and reimbursement changes;

6 Feedback from patients, families, hospital staff, and physicians regarding patient care
concerns or issues;

7. The Hospital’s Strategic and Facilities Plan and annual budget;-
8. Regulatory or accreditation changes;
89. Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) revisions.
C. This review is to be performed by the Executive Team, the Medical Executive Committee, and

the Board of Directors.

I. DEFINITION OF NURSING

A. Nursmg is the protection, promotlon and optlmlzatlon of health and abllltles, prevention
of iliness and and-injury, alleviation of suffering through the diagnosis and treatment of
human response and advocacy in the care of individuals, families, communities and
populations. American Nurses Association, Scope of Practice, 2015 3™ Ed.

. NURSING VISION AND DISTRICT VALUES
A. To become known for nursing care that is the magnetic force which attracts the community to
Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD)Medical-Genter.
A:B. The needs of our patients come first.

o N . Pharmacy & Medical Professional
O oviow | and Procedres | | Commitiee - | Therapeutics Executive Affairs Directore
Committee Committee Committee

| 07/16, 06/17

09/16, 07/117

09/16, 07/17

n/a

10/16, 08/17

47



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 2 of 16

UIDING PRINCIPLES

G
A We never lose sight of our patients’ and families’ needs and expectations.

B We strive to make the most efficient use of our resources.

C. We are alert for opportunities to improve.

D. We encourage patients and families to participate in their care and decisions affecting their
care.

E We focus on team relationships and healthy interpersonal skills.

F We enter into partnerships with patients, families, and other health care professionals eagerly.
G We base our decisions for care on the nursing practice act, nursing standards and nursing
evidence-based research.

H We acknowledge that maintaining the highest standards of patient care is a never-ending
process which involves the patient, family, all health care providers, and the community at large.
We view learning as a lifelong process which is essential to our development.

We embrace change to promote and advance the delivery of care to our patients.

We utilize informatic solutions and technology to support all areas of nursing, including but not
limited to, the direct provision of care, establishing effective administrative systems, managing
and delivering educational experiences, enhancing lifelong learning and supporting nursing
research.

AT

V. PHILOSOPHY OF NURSING/CORE BELIEFS
A. Nurses at F#-Gity-Medical-CenterTCHD believe that Professional Nursing is both an art and a
science; a dynamic practice based upon the nursing process and a combination of knowledge,
skills and the provision of care that incorporates professional values, compassion, and
commitment to excellence. We believe:

1. Caring - is the essence of nursing. A caring approach includes: knowledge, adaptable
approaches based on the care-recipient’s unique needs, patience, honesty, trust,
humility, hope and courage.

2. Diversity - is a core element for caring and leadership. It requires that the individual
affirm his or her own unique self while learning to respect and address the needs of
others who may have different values.

3. Accountability - is the hallmark of professional practice. It requires responsibility to set
personal standards for accomplishing expected goals, objectives and outcomes; for
relationships and working together (collegiality); for supporting colleagues/peers; and for
adherence to organizational policy and procedure.

4. Integrity - is the foundation for clinical practice, leadership, and learning. It encompasses
a commitment to people (staff, colleagues, families, community, and adherence to the
professional nursing code of ethics and professional nursing standards of practice.

5. Advocacy - is an inherent element of nursing ethics and nursing practice. As an
advocate, the nurse is responsible for safeguarding, promoting, and supporting the
patient’s values and decisions.

6. Scholarship - is a life-long practice where the nurse acquires ongoing knowledge for
expert practice in professional nursing, transcultural nursing care and leadership.
Experienced nurses serve as mentors to others in assisting them to achieve a higher
level of evidence-based practice.

V.  SCOPE OF PATIENT CARE




Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 3 of 16

ViI.

VIIL.

A

Patient care at Fri-City-Medical-Center TCHD encompasses health promotion, disease
prevention and treatment activities in the community, home, acute care, inpatient and outpatient
arena. This care is provided collaboratively by health care providers with specialized knowledge,
judgment and skill. Patient care is planned, coordinated, provided, delegated and supervised by
professional health care providers who recognize physical, psychological, and spiritual needs of
patients.

1. All PCS departments have a plan that describes their scope of service.

PRACTICE STANDARDS

A

American Nurses Association Code of Ethics for Nurses 2015 2" Ed.— Ethics is an integral part
of the foundation of nursing practice. The Code of Ethics for Nurses provides a framework for
nurses at Fri-Gity-Medical-CenterTCHD to use in ethical analysis and decision-making. The nine
provisions of the Code of Ethics describe the most fundamental values and commitments of the
nurse, boundaries of duty and loyalty and duties beyond individual patient encounters. These
interpretive statements are H-is not negotiable in any setting-:

Respect for Others

Commitment to the Patient

Advocacy for the Patient

Accountability and Responsibility for Practice

Duty to Self and Duty to Others

Contribution to Healthcare Environments

Advancement of the Nursing profession

Promotion of Community and World Health

Promotion of the Nursing Profession

Amencan Nurses Association Scope & Standards for Nursing Practice — This scope statement
and standards of nursing practice guide, define and direct professional nursing practice in all
settings and outlines the expectations of the professional role within which all registered nurses
must practice.

California Nurse Practice Act — The Nurse Practice Act outlines the laws and regulations that
define the scope of nursing practice in the state of California. Fri-GityTCHD nurses are
responsnble to be mformed of these laws.

NN

PATIENT CARE MODEL: SYNERGY (uses trademark)

A

B.
C.

1H-G|-ty—MedJGaJ-GenteFTCHD Nurses use the Synergy Model for patient care to match the
needs of our patients to the competencies of the nurse to ensure optimal outcomes.

The Synergy model delineates three levels of outcomes: those derived from the patient, those
derived from the nurse, and those derived from the healthcare system.

Nurse Competencies:

Clinical judgment, including decision making, critical thinking and basic nursing skills.
Caring practices, responding to the unique needs of patients and families.

Advocacy to help identify and resolve concerns as they arise.

Collaboration with the entire team of caregivers.

Sensitivity and response to diversity to incorporate differences into patient care.
Facilitation of learning to ensure patients and families know how to continue care.
Clinical inquiry, including questioning and evaluation of practices to provide the best
possible care.

8. Systems thinking to take a holistic approach to every care giving situation.

Patient Characteristics:

1. Participation in decision making about treatment options.

NooprwN -~

49



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care

Page 4 of 16

A

2. Involvement in care.

3. Level of stability (critical, fair, and stable).

4. Complexity of the illness or injury.

5. Resiliency of the patient.

6. Vulnerability or susceptibility to stressors of all types.

7. Availability of resources, including support systems upon discharge.

8. Predictability of the illness or injury.

IX. PROFESSIONAL STAFF NURSE CORE PERFORMANCE EXPECTATIONS

Assessment:

1. The Registered Nurse (RN) collects comprehensive data pertinent to the patient’s health
or the situation.

Diagnosis:

1. The RN analyzes the assessment data to determine the diagnosis of issues.

Outcome ldentification:

1. The RN identifies expected outcomes for a plan individualized to the patient or the
situation.

Planning:

1. The RN develops a plan that prescribes strategies and alternatives to attain expected
outcomes.

Implementation:
1. The RN implements the plan

2. Coordination of Care:
a. The RN coordinates care
3. Health Teaching& Health Promotion:
a. The RN employs strategies to promote health and a safe environment
4, Consultation:
a. The advanced practice registered nurse and the nursing role specialist provide

consultation to influence the identified plan, enhance the abilities of others, and
effect change.
Evaluation:
1. The RN determines the patient’s progress toward the attainment of expected outcomes
and the effectiveness of nursing care.

PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE REGISTERED NURSE

ED.
EE.

G-F.
H-G.

E£H.

J-l.

Takes initiative for own learning gaps, seeks experiences and formal and independent learning
activities to maintain and develop clinical and professional skills and knowledge.
Is aware of own posmve and negatlve blases and Ilmltatlons

Has self conf dence in own expertise.

Resowmeforpaunsiaft

Involves patient/family in the plan of care; informs team members of patient needs, goals,
preferences and expected outcomes.

Actively participates in report, rounds, staffing, shared decision-making activities develops plan
of care; discusses it with patient, family and care team and revises it as necessary.

Accesses current nursing journals on research, best practices, technology and innovations.
Actively participates in unit retention strategies.

Embraces opportunities to preceptor,-ahd mentor colleagues, and students, sharing learning to

further the practice of nursing.-and-is-open-te-rew-processes-and-prastices

Embraces change as a mechanism to promote patient care and the nursing profession.

Xl STAFFING PLANS



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 5 of 16

A. Staffing plans and scheduling for patient care service departments are developed based on the
mandated RN to patient ratio and intensity of care that needs to be provided, the frequency of
the care to be provided, and a determination of the level of staff that can most appropriately
(competently and confidently) provide the type of care needed.

B. Each department has a formalized staffing grid which is reviewed at biannually based on the
following: Hours Per Patient Day/Hours Unit Of Service, utilization review, employee turnover,
performance assessment and improvement activities, changes in customer needs/expectations,
“Best Practice” information from other sources, new services planned, patient volume and
population changes, and risk management. Staffing grids are decentralized in the Staffing Office
and are kept in unit/departmental documents.

C. The Hospital and CNA bargaining unit will meet annually to validate the acuity assignment
process.

Xll.  DELIVERY OF NURSING CARE
B-A. Fhere-Areas seventeen-{1#-areas where nursing care is delivered under the Division of
Nursing (including but not limited to):

1. Acute Care Services (1 North, /inpatient Acute Rehabilitation (ARU), 2 Pavilion, 3
Pavilion-4 Pavilion;-3NS):
a. Acute Care Services develop, implement, and evaluate a plan of nursing care for
adult (14 years and older) acute care patients who are acutely ill or injured and
are in varying stages of recuperation from diagnostic, therapeutic, or surgical

intervention.
i. 1 North: Orthopedic diagnoses are emphasized.-as-outlined-in
ki, Inpatient Acute Rehabilitation (ARU): The ARU provides restorative and

maintenance programs for the adult patient (ages 14 years and older)
suffering from cerebral vascular disease and other diseases or conditions
requiring neurological or functional rehabilitation services. This plan
incorporates mutual interdisciplinary interactions while maintaining patient
advocacy. This plan of care includes the patient, family/significant others,
the nurse, social worker, admissions liaison and utilization review
coordinator, physical therapist, occupational therapist, speech therapist,
therapeutic recreational specialist, discharge coordinator and the Medical
Director of the Acute Rehabilitation Unit.

iii. 2 Pavilion: Oncological diagnoses are emphasized; along with general
medical surgical diagnosis.

51



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 6 of 16

{iziv. 4 Pavilion: Medical monitoring unit available for rate monitoring only.
Neurology patients, specifically with stroke and seizure diagnosis;

dialysis.
Behavioral Health Services/Crisis Stabilization Unit:
a. The Behavioral Health Unit/Crisis Stabilization Unit develops, implements, and

evaluates a plan of psychiatric nursing care to adults 18 years and older who are
significantly impaired as a result of psychiatric disorders. This plan incorporates
active interdisciplinary treatment teams consisting of psychiatric nurses and
physicians, social services personnel, psychologists, mental health workers, and
recreational therapists. The plan of care utilizes a variety of pharmacologic,
behavioral, and psychotherapeutic interventions (groups and individual therapy)
to restore optimal patient

Emergency Services:

a. The Emergency Department provides comprehensive services and develops,
implements, and evaluates a nursing plan of care for all patients presenting to
the department, and provides medical direction to paramedics via the Base
Station radio. The plan of care incorporates mutual interdisciplinary interactions
while maintaining patient’'s advocacy and includes the patient, family, significant
others and the nurse in response to the psychological and physical needs.

Home Health:

a. The Home Health Department develops, implements, evaluates and executes a
comprehensive care plan for patients 18 years and older who meet the criteria.
Home Health provides services for Medicare, Medi-Cal and contracted insurance
companies. Home Health is Medicare certified and follows the guidelines of
homebound status for Medicare. The plan of care is multidisciplinary which
includes RN, Licensed Vocational Nurse (LVN), Certified Home Health Aid
(CHHA), Registered Diatition (RD), Physical and Occupational Therapy, Social
Services, patient, family and caregivers as an integral part of achieving
restorative status. The Home Health team promotes patient advocacy interacting
with physicians and community resources for positive physical, emotional and
spiritual outcomes.

Infusion Center- Outpatient Hospital:

a. The purpose of this area is to meet the needs of patients who require blood
transfusions, antibiotic therapy, arthritic infusions, and 1V infusions for
dehydration. Offsite Outpatient infusion is for Chemotherapy.

Intensive Care Unit:

a. The Intensive Care Unit develops, implements, and evaluates a plan of nursing
care for patients 14 years of age and older or weighing at least 35 kilograms with
actual or potential life threatening medical or surgical conditions.

Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU):

a. The purpose of this unit is to develop, implement, and evaluate a plan of care for
newbem—mfants born prematurely and/or mfants who are crltlcally |Il-and—need

Pat|ent needs are met through md|V|duaI|zed and spemallzed care
coordinated through the interdisciplinary team approach. This plan
emphasizes supportive, developmental and therapeutic care unique to the

needs of each infant incerporates-mutual-interdisciplinary-interactions-while
nd includes the patient-family; and/or

maleiainingpaiientadvecas-a
designated family/infant support members-and-the-nurse-inrespense-to
peyshelegiceland-physical-neads.

Progressive Care Ferensie-Unit/Specialty Clinic:

a. This is a 41 bed secured unit that provides various services to patients age
18 and above demonstrating aberrant behavior requiring 24 hour
supervision concurrently with their medical condition. Justice involved

52



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 7 of 16

individuals may be placed on this unit. This level is appropriate to use

when the patient is hemodynamically stable along with any of the

following. InterQual criteria will be utilized to meet the level of care required

for the available bed.

i. Continuous Cardiac Monitoring (See Telemetry-Rolicy: Admission
and Discharge Criteria Policy)

ii. Chemotherapy Administration (See Patient Care Services:
Chemotherapy Administration Procedure)

iiii. Acute rehabilitation

iv. Ante-partum care

V. Post-partum care

»wvi. Medical-Surgical

Perioperative/Perianesthesia Surgical-Services:
a. Post-Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU):

i. Provides nursing care to patients in the post--operative/post anesthetic
phase of the Perioperative period. Nursing care plans are developed,
implemented and evaluated on individual patient needs. Nursing care is
provided to deliver a safe, effective and appropriate level of care to

patlents 14 years of age and older pahent—ea;e—AH—ages—ef—paﬁems-ape

b. Pre- Operatlve Hold

i. The purpose of this unit is to assess, implement and evaluate a plan of
pre-admission education to pre-operative patients 14 years of age and
older, and significant othersfrom-pediatric-patients-through-geriatric
adult-patients. Each patient's needs are met through individualized and
specialized nursing care coordinated through the interdisciplinary team
approach for care. The plan emphasizes supportive, therapeutic, and
preventive care inclusive of the unique physical and emotional needs of
the patient.

c. Surgery:

i The purpose of Surgery/Operating Room is to provide surgical care to
patients fourteen (14) years of age and older throughout the
intraoperative phase of patient care. The endoscopy suite is also included
within the surgery department. Nursing care plans are developed,
implemented, and evaluated for each individual patient who enters the
operating room. MostAll surgical specialties are provided, including
cardlac There are ho trauma or transplant services prowded All—ages—ef

d. Spesial-Procedure-Rescoverr-Area{SRPRA)Outpatient Post-Anesthesia Care

Unit:

i. The purpose of this area is to provide nursing care to patients receiving
outpatient-infusiens-andferrequiring recovery from outpatient
interventional procedures or stage two recovery (when needed)s.
Nursing care is provided to deliver a safe, effective and appropriate level
of patient care.

e. Preoperative Education (Outpatient Service Center):

i. The purpose of this area is to provide preoperative education to and

assessment of patients prior to the day of the surgical procedure.

53



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 8 of 16

Patients may either have face to face visits, or a telephone call for
assessment and education.

10. Telemetry (2 East, 2 West, 4 East, 4 West and 3 Pavilion):

a. The purpose of Telemetry is to develop, implement, and evaluate the Plan of
Nursing Care for all clients. Telemetry accepts patients 14 years of age and older
who require cardiac monitoring, arterial line monitoring, chronic mechanical
ventilation, mechanical ventilator weaning, or patients requiring intensity of
service which cannot be provided in the acute care setting.

11. Women's and Newbornirfant Services:

a. The Women's and NewbornGhildrer's Services department develops,
implements, and evaluates a plan of care for the mother and family experiencing
the birth of a child or pregnant women experiencing medical/surgical/obstetrical
complications. This plan incorporates mutual interdisciplinary interactions while
maintaining patient advocacy. This plan of care includes the patient, family,
significant others and the nurse in response to psychological and physical needs.

12. Wound Care (Inpatient and Outpatient):

a. The Wound Care Team provides advanced therapy and treatment for
patients with non-healing wounds or who are at risk for limb loss. A plan is
developed after thorough assessment of factors that may impede healing
including vascular insufficiency, infection, biomechanical forces, and
physical and psychological needs. Interventions such as
prevention/protection, debridement, grafts, or hyperbaric oxygen are
implemented and reassessment/updating of the plan occurs at least weekly
and as needed. Wound volume is tracked to assure that-anticipated healing
trajectories are met. The patient, family and significant others, as well as a
multidisciplinary Wound Team, are involved in the plan of care.

E-B. Areas where Nursing Care is delivered, not under the Division of Nursing:

1. Nursing care departments not specifically reporting to the chief nurse executive are
overseen by the chief nurse executive via a dotted line relationship, ongoing meetings,
regular communication opportunities, review and oversight of nursing practice issues,
and approval of policies and procedures.

2. Cardiac Catheterization Lab:

a. The purpose of the Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory is to diagnose the exact
nature, extent and severity of a patient’s heart disease to determine the correct
therapeutic approach. Patient's needs are met through individualized and
specialized nursing care coordinated through the interdisciplinary team approach
for care.

3. Cardiac Rehabilitation:
ea. The purpose of the Cardiac Rehabilitation department is to evaluate,

monitor, and educate patients on the importance of risk factor modification
and lifestyle changes necessary to improve quality of life and overall
cardiovascular health and to avoid any further complications or events
pertaining to heart health. Patient treatment plans are developed by a
multidisciplinary staff based on individual patient needs, medical history,
and goals. The main foci are the ECG monitored exercise training session,
medication understanding and compliance, diabetes management, and
weight management.

4, Cardioasvascular Health Institute:

a. The Cardiovascular Health Institute focus is disease prevention, education,
and treatment through a multidisciplinary approach of Cardiology,
Interventional Radiology, Cardiac and Vascular Surgery and through
cardiovascular screenings. Patient’s needs are met through a Nursing
Clinical Care Coordinator who coordinates and manages patient-focused

94



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care

Page 9 of 16

| XHXII.

XHEXIV.

care, communicates openly with the patient’s physicians, and simplifies
and streamlines the experience.
5. Neurovascular Institute:

a. The Neuroscience Institute is a co-management collaborative between Tri-
City Healthcare District and physicians who practice within all domains of
neurological and neurosurgical health. The objective is to provide high
quality, seamless care for all patients who receive care from the most basic
screening to most complex neurosurgical procedures. The multi-
disciplinary approach is aimed at achieving the highest quality patient
outcome of care that is delivered in the most efficient manner.

6. Orthopaedic Institute:

é-a. The Orthopaedic and Spine Institute is a co-management collaborative
between Tri-City Healthcare District and physicians who practice within all
domains of orthopedic and spine services. The objective is to provide high
quality, seamless care for all patients who receive care from the most basic
musculoskeletal screening to most complex joint and spinal procedures.
The multi-disciplinary approach is aimed at achieving the highest quality
patient outcome of care that is delivered in the most efficient manner.

3:7.  Interventional Radiology:

a. Interventional Radiology is a sub-specialty of Diagnostic Radiology that has
evolved over the past 25 years to become an integral part of comprehensive
nursing care, providing alternatives to surgery for a broad range of health
problems. Patient's needs are met through individualized and specialized nursing
care coordinated through the interdisciplinary team approach for care.

INTEGRATION OF PATIENT CARE AND SUPPORT SERVICES

A collaborative multidisciplinary team approach, which takes into account the unique
knowledge, judgment and skills of a variety of disciplines in achieving desired patient outcomes,
serves as a foundation for integration. Open lines of communication exist between departments
providing patient care, patient services and support services within the hospital, and as
appropriate with community agencies to ensure efficient, effective and continuous patient care.
To facilitate effective interdepartmental relationships, problem-solving and shared decision
making is encouraged at the point of service within the organization. Staff is encouraged to
address one another’s issues and concerns and seek mutually acceptable solutions.
Supervisors and managers have the authority to solve problems and seek solutions within their
span of control. Positive interdepartmental communications are strongly expected as part of our
service standards.

When problems/issues identified involve two or more areas providing patient care, patient
services or support services, supervisors or managers may elect to establish an
interdepartmental work group of the personnel from the areas involved for the purpose of
identifying mutually acceptable solutions. Other options would include nursing professional
practice or operations. Leaders have several options for solutions to interdepartmental issues.
Some of these options include: establishing interdepartmental work groups/committees (ad hoc
or permanent); referring to the Performance Improvement Committee for consideration in
forming a Rapid Improvement Event; and addressing issues in staff meetings.

REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS

The clinical practice departments are organized and grouped according to services

offered and are under the management of a Director/Manager. Each Director/Manager is

accountable to the Chief Nurse Executive (CNE) for patient care and services provided in

their areas.

1. Staff meetings shall be conducted by the Director/Clinical Manager or designee
with a mechanism established for all staff members’ participation.

2. The Manager/ANM shall meet with their assigned Director/CNE at least monthly.

55



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care

Page 10 of 16

| XBLXV.

| XMXVI.

43. Directors/Managers shall ensure staff communication meetings are held at least
monthly.

4. Directors/ /Managers may attend the Medical Staff Division Meetings when
appropriate.

The Chief Nurse Executive (CNE):

1. Assures that the clinical departments are organized consistently with the variety
and complexity of patient care service and the scope of clinical activities.
2. Is responsible and accountable for the daily operations of the PCS units and is a

member of the Senior Leadership Team and participates in Board meetings as a
C-Suite member.Executive-Counecil.
3. Reports the status of the plan for Nursing Services to the Clinical-Ratient-Gare Quality
Committee, and to Board of Directors.
4. Attends Medical Executive as the representative for the Department of Nursing.
Patient Care Services Councils communicate with medical staff committees in the
following way:
1. Quality reports to the Medical Quality/Peer Review Committee and QAPI.Medical

Brrzsutive-Committee{MES)

2. CNE sits on the reports-te Medical Executive Committee (MEC) as a non -voting
member.

3. Medical Executive Committee reports to the Board of Directors (BOD)

QUALITY

Each Nursing area has developed a plan for patient care with metrics for quality and
performance improvement. These are measured at least monthly and reported to the through
QAPI and the Board annually. Areas of monitoring include but are not limited to:

1. Comprehensive unit-based safety program (CUSP) Projects
2, Catheter-associated urinary tract infection (CAUTI)

3. Central line-associated bloodstream infection (CLABSI)
24. Falls

3:5. Hand washing

4.6. Hospital acquired condition (HAC)

&.7. Medication Administration

8. Skin Care

Task forces, teams, committees and councils with staff participation as appropriate, shall
be utilized to address issues identified through the Performance improvement process.

BUDGET
The plan for the provision of patient services includes the hospital's budget process and
considers the following:

1. Patient requirements and their implications for staffing;

2. The hospital’s ability to attract and develop staff;

3. Relevant information from performance improvement, risk management, utilization
review, and other evaluation activities pertaining to unit, area, or departmental staffing;

4, Feedback and specific concerns raised by patients, staff, and physicians.

In preparation for each fiscal year, the Department Director and/or Manager develop an
operating and capital budget for each respective cost center and it is then submitted to the
executive team and Board of Directors for final approval. Actual performance compared to the
budget is reviewed regularly during the course of the fiscal year and is distributed to the
department Director and/or Manager. A formal annual review of the effectiveness of the
budgetary plan is made following the close of each fiscal year. Requests for capital equipment
expenditures are initiated within each department/unit and are forwarded to the vice presidents,
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Office, Chief Nurse Executive, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Human Resources Officer, Chief Compliance Officer; for certain capital items, referral to
the Board of Directors for final approval is required.

56



Patient Care Services
Pian for Nursing Care

Page 11 of 16

| XMEXVIL.
A.

| B.

[ XMHXVIIL

A.

NURSING LEADERSHIP

To maintain a working environment that encourages professional growth through practice,
education and research, peer review, resulting in quality nursing care and satisfaction.
The Role of Nursing Leadership itn Facilitating Excellent Nursing Care

1.
2.

We recognize the excellence delivered by our staff. As nurse leaders, we believe our
critical role is making this excellence possible.

We believe nurses who provide direct patient care provide invaluable direction,
information and insight into the delivery of patient care and nursing practice, therefore;
every attempt to ensure their attendance at Shared Decision-Making Council meetings is
made.

Nursing is a profound partnership between nurses and patients. Nurses help patients to
achieve their potential for health and to cope with their iliness/injury. The professional
nurse combines superb technical skill with an expert knowledge base. The professional
nurse then needs an outstanding knack for communication-ease to achieve the best
patient outcomes.

NURSING SHARED-DECISION MAKING STRUCTURE

The Shared-Decision Making (SDM) structure shall be clearly defined through which the nursing
staff will coordinate and integrate the delivery of nursing care. The SDM structure will recognize
participation from all nursing staff members and will give evidence of shared decision making
within the formal structure of the nursing staff.

The Purpose of Shared-Besision{SDM):

1.

To provide a structure that supports the point of care and sustains ownership and
accountability at the point of service. This structure builds a culture for people to be
together, to tell the story. It creates: shared meaning and purpose in work, healthy
relationships and meaningful conversations. All staff is encouraged to begin to
participate at the level that they are most comfortable with, and then to “spread their
wings” as they become more familiar with the concept of SDM, feeling empowered to
contribute to decisions and trust that the community of nursing embraces their
contributions, it will flourish. Decisions are made through consensus. Proposed
decisions are brought to the various nursing committees for discussion, revisions,
approval or disapproval. Final decisions are based on research, evidence, regulations
and/or best practices.

XiIX. SHARED DECISION MAKING COMMITTEES
+A.

Patient Care Services (PCS) is managed through application of Interdisciplinary Shared
Leadership.

21,

The councils of the PCS areas operate under Shared Leadership.

a. A staff and management representative of the unit-based committees may
participate in the councils

b. Staff members/Assistant Nurse Managers (ANM) shall participate in
committees/councils as assigned and shall be provided time for attendance
when on duty. (See Professional Nursing Governance Bylaws for detail).

57



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 12 of 16

58



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 13 of 16

59



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 14 of 16

60



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 15 of 16

XX.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

A. Patient Care Services: Chemotherapy Administration Procedure
B. Telemetry: Admission and Discharge Criteria Policy

61



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care

Page 16 of 16

XMHEXXI.

REFERENCES:

American Nurses Association. (2015) Code of Ethics for Nurses with Interpretive
Statements. Washington, D.C.: American Nurses Publishing. 20450

American Nurses Association. (2015) Nursing: Scope and Standards of Practice..20450
California Nurse Practice Act (2016)4

FHm-Porter-O’'Grady, T. P. (1999) Leading the Revolution in Health Care..1999-pg 164.

62



(c\? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

CLEAN COPY

Plan for Nursing Care

PURPOSE

A

o

The hospital-wide plan for the provision of services is designed to assure:

1.
2.

3.

4.

Patient Care Services (PCS) are appropriately integrated throughout the organization;
Adequate resources are available to assess, plan, deliver, manage, and evaluate patient
care;

The design of patient care services provided throughout the organization is appropriate
to the scope and level of care required by the patients served,;

Uniform performance of patient care is provided throughout the organization.

The hospital-wide plan for the provision of services is reviewed at least annually or as deemed
necessary due to changing patient populations or other internal or external factors such as:

Patient care requirements;

The Hospital's recruitment, retention, and staff development capabilities;

Information from performance improvement, risk management, utilization management,
safety reviews and other evaluation activities;

Evaluation of innovations and improvements in patient care;

Affiliations, managed care contracts and reimbursement changes;

Feedback from patients, families, hospital staff, and physicians regarding patient care
concerns or issues;

The Hospital's Strategic and Facilities Plan and annual budget;

Regulatory or accreditation changes;

Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) revisions.

Th|s review is to be performed by the Executive Team, the Medical Executive Committee, and
the Board of Directors.

DEFINITION OF NURSING

A

Nursing is the protection, promotion and optimization of health and abilities, prevention of iliness
and injury, alleviation of suffering through the diagnosis and treatment of human response and
advocacy in the care of individuals, families, communities and populations. American Nurses
Association, Scope of Practice, 2015 3" Ed.

NURSING VISION AND DISTRICT VALUES

A To become known for nursing care that is the magnetic force which attracts the community to
Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD).
B. The needs of our patients come first.
V. GUIDING PRINCIPLES
A. We never lose sight of our patients’ and families’ needs and expectations.
B. We strive to make the most efficient use of our resources.
C. We are alert for opportunities to improve.
D. We encourage patients and families to participate in their care and decisions affecting their
care.
E. We focus on team relationships and healthy interpersonal skills.
F. We enter into partnerships with patients, families, and other health care professionals eagerly.
2 o Pharmacy & Medical Professional
Department Clinical Policies | Nurse Executive f Board of
Review and Procedures Committee ngrr:f:i:'tggs g:;cr::tit?e c :"f‘f;iir;e - Directors
07/16, 06/17 09/16, 07/17 09/16, 07/17 nia 10/16, 08/17

63



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care

Page 2 of 10

G.
H.

We base our decisions for care on the nursing practice act, nursing standards and nursing
evidence-based research.

We acknowledge that maintaining the highest standards of patient care is a never-ending
process which involves the patient, family, all health care providers, and the community at large.
We view learning as a lifelong process which is essential to our development.

We embrace change to promote and advance the delivery of care to our patients.

We utilize informatic solutions and technology to support all areas of nursing, including but not
limited to, the direct provision of care, establishing effective administrative systems, managing
and delivering educational experiences, enhancing lifelong learning and supporting nursing
research.

V. PHILOSOPHY OF NURSING/CORE BELIEFS

A

Nurses at TCHD believe that Professional Nursing is both an art and a science; a dynamic

practice based upon the nursing process and a combination of knowledge, skills and the

provision of care that incorporates professional values, compassion, and commitment to
excellence. We believe:

1. Caring - is the essence of nursing. A caring approach includes: knowledge, adaptable
approaches based on the care-recipient’s unique needs, patience, honesty, trust,
humility, hope and courage.

2. Diversity - is a core element for caring and leadership. It requires that the individual
affirm his or her own unique self while learning to respect and address the needs of
others who may have different values.

3. Accountability - is the hallmark of professional practice. It requires responsibility to set
personal standards for accomplishing expected goals, objectives and outcomes; for
relationships and working together (collegiality); for supporting colleagues/peers; and for
adherence to organizational policy and procedure.

4, Integrity - is the foundation for clinical practice, leadership, and learning. It encompasses
a commitment to people (staff, colleagues, families, community, and adherence to the
professional nursing code of ethics and professional nursing standards of practice.

5. Advocacy - is an inherent element of nursing ethics and nursing practice. As an
advocate, the nurse is responsible for safeguarding, promoting, and supporting the
patient’s values and decisions.

6. Scholarship — is a life-long practice where the nurse acquires ongoing knowledge for
expert practice in professional nursing, transcultural nursing care and leadership.
Experienced nurses serve as mentors to others in assisting them to achieve a higher
level of evidence-based practice.

V.  SCOPE OF PATIENT CARE

A.

Patient care at TCHD encompasses health promotion, disease prevention and treatment
activities in the community, home, acute care, inpatient and outpatient arena. This care is
provided collaboratively by health care providers with specialized knowledge, judgment and
skill. Patient care is planned, coordinated, provided, delegated and supervised by professional
health care providers who recognize physical, psychological, and spiritual needs of patients.
1. All PCS departments have a plan that describes their scope of service.

ViIl. PRACTICE STANDARDS

A.

American Nurses Association Code of Ethics for Nurses 2015 2™ Ed.— Ethics is an integral part
of the foundation of nursing practice. The Code of Ethics for Nurses provides a framework for
nurses at TCHD to use in ethical analysis and decision-making. The nine provisions of the Code
of Ethics describe the most fundamental values and commitments of the nurse, boundaries of
duty and loyalty and duties beyond individual patient encounters. These interpretive statements
are not negotiable in any setting:

1. Respect for Others

2. Commitment to the Patient

64



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care

Page 3 of 10
B.
C.
VIII.

Advocacy for the Patient

Accountability and Responsibility for Practice

Duty to Self and Duty to Others

Contribution to Healthcare Environments

Advancement of the Nursing profession

Promotion of Community and World Health

Promotion of the Nursing Profession

Amencan Nurses Association Scope & Standards for Nursing Practice — This scope statement
and standards of nursing practice guide, define and direct professional nursing practice in all
settings and outlines the expectations of the professional role within which all registered nurses
must practice.

California Nurse Practice Act — The Nurse Practice Act outlines the laws and regulations that
define the scope of nursing practice in the state of California. TCHD nurses are responsible to
be informed of these laws.

©CENO O AW

PATIENT CARE MODEL: SYNERGY (uses trademark)

A
B.
C.

A.

TCHD Nurses use the Synergy Model for patient care to match the needs of our patients to the
competencies of the nurse to ensure optimal outcomes.

The Synergy model delineates three levels of outcomes: those derived from the patient, those
derived from the nurse, and those derived from the healthcare system.

Nurse Competencies:

Clinical judgment, including decision making, critical thinking and basic nursing skills.
Caring practices, responding to the unique needs of patients and families.

Advocacy to help identify and resolve concerns as they arise.

Collaboration with the entire team of caregivers.

Sensitivity and response to diversity to incorporate differences into patient care.
Facilitation of learning to ensure patients and families know how to continue care.
Clinical inquiry, including questioning and evaluation of practices to provide the best
possible care.

Systems thinking to take a holistic approach to every care giving situation.

Patlent Characteristics:

NogA~WN =

1. Participation in decision making about treatment options.

2. Involvement in care.

3. Level of stability (critical, fair, and stable).

4, Complexity of the illness or injury.

5. Resiliency of the patient.

6. Vulnerability or susceptibility to stressors of all types.

7. Availability of resources, including support systems upon discharge.

8. Predictability of the iliness or injury.

PROFESSIONAL STAFF NURSE CORE PERFORMANCE EXPECTATIONS

Assessment:

1. The Registered Nurse (RN) collects comprehensive data pertinent to the patient’s health
or the situation.

Diagnosis:

1. The RN analyzes the assessment data to determine the diagnosis of issues.

Outcome ldentification:

1. The RN identifies expected outcomes for a plan individualized to the patient or the
situation.

Planning:

1. The RN develops a plan that prescribes strategies and alternatives to attain expected
outcomes.

Implementation:

1. The RN implements the plan

65



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care

Page 4 of 10
2. Coordination of Care:
a. The RN coordinates care
3. Health Teaching& Health Promotion:
a. The RN employs strategies to promote health and a safe environment
4, Consultation:

a. The advanced practice registered nurse and the nursing role specialist provide
consultation to influence the identified plan, enhance the abilities of others, and
effect change.

F. Evaluation:
1. The RN determines the patient’s progress toward the attainment of expected outcomes
and the effectiveness of nursing care.
X. PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE REGISTERED NURSE

Xl

XII.

Takes initiative for own learning gaps, seeks experiences and formal and independent learning
activities to maintain and develop clinical and professional skills and knowledge.

Is aware of own positive and negative biases and limitations.

Has self confidence in own expertise. '

Involves patient/family in the plan of care; informs team members of patient needs, goals,
preferences and expected outcomes.

Actively participates in report, rounds, staffing, shared decision-making activities develops plan
of care; discusses it with patient, family and care team and revises it as necessary.

Accesses current nursing journals on research, best practices, technology and innovations.
Actively participates in unit retention strategies.

Embraces opportunities to preceptor, mentor colleagues, and students, sharing learning to
further the practice of nursing.

Embraces change as a mechanism to promote patient care and the nursing profession.

m Dow »

Tom

STAFFING PLANS

A. Staffing plans and scheduling for patient care service departments are developed based on the
mandated RN to patient ratio and intensity of care that needs to be provided, the frequency of
the care to be provided, and a determination of the level of staff that can most appropriately
(competently and confidently) provide the type of care needed.

B. Each department has a formalized staffing grid which is reviewed at annually based on the
following: Hours Per Patient Day/Hours Unit Of Service, utilization review, employee turnover,
performance assessment and improvement activities, changes in customer needs/expectations,
“Best Practice” information from other sources, new services planned, patient volume and
population changes, and risk management. Staffing grids are decentralized in the Staffing Office
and are kept in unit/departmental documents.

C. The Hospital and CNA bargaining unit will meet annually to validate the acuity assignment
process.

DELIVERY OF NURSING CARE

A Areas where nursing care is delivered under the Division of Nursing (including but not limited
to):
1. Acute Care Services (1 North, Inpatient Acute Rehabilitation (ARU), 2 Pavilion, 4
Pavilion):
a. Acute Care Services develop, implement, and evaluate a plan of nursing care for

adult (14 years and older) acute care patients who are acutely ill or injured and

are in varying stages of recuperation from diagnostic, therapeutic, or surgical

intervention.

i. 1 North: Orthopedic diagnoses are emphasized.

ii. Inpatient Acute Rehabilitation (ARU): The ARU provides restorative and
maintenance programs for the adult patient (ages 14 years and older)
suffering from cerebral vascular disease and other diseases or conditions

66



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 5 of 10

requiring neurological or functional rehabilitation services. This plan
incorporates mutual interdisciplinary interactions while maintaining patient
advocacy. This plan of care includes the patient, family/significant others,
the nurse, social worker, admissions liaison and utilization review
coordinator, physical therapist, occupational therapist, speech therapist,
therapeutic recreational specialist, discharge coordinator and the Medical
Director of the Acute Rehabilitation Unit.

iii. 2 Pavilion: Oncological diagnoses are emphasized; along with general
medical surgical diagnosis.

iv. 4 Pavilion: Medical monitoring unit available for rate monitoring only.
Neurology patients, specifically with stroke and seizure diagnosis;
dialysis.
2 Behavioral Health Services/Crisis Stabilization Unit:
a. The Behavioral Health Unit/Crisis Stabilization Unit develops, implements, and

evaluates a plan of psychiatric nursing care to adults 18 years and older who are
significantly impaired as a result of psychiatric disorders. This plan incorporates
active interdisciplinary treatment teams consisting of psychiatric nurses and
physicians, social services personnel, psychologists, mental health workers, and
recreational therapists. The plan of care utilizes a variety of pharmacologic,
behavioral, and psychotherapeutic interventions (groups and individual therapy)
to restore optimal patient

3. Emergency Services:

a. The Emergency Department provides comprehensive services and develops,
implements, and evaluates a nursing plan of care for all patients presenting to
the department, and provides medical direction to paramedics via the Base
Station radio. The plan of care incorporates mutual interdisciplinary interactions
while maintaining patient's advocacy and includes the patient, family, significant
others and the nurse in response to the psychological and physical needs.

4, Home Health:

a. The Home Health Department develops, implements, evaluates and executes a
comprehensive care plan for patients 18 years and older who meet the criteria.
Home Health provides services for Medicare, Medi-Cal and contracted insurance
companies. Home Health is Medicare certified and follows the guidelines of
homebound status for Medicare. The plan of care is multidisciplinary which
includes RN, Licensed Vocational Nurse (LVN), Certified Home Health Aid
(CHHA), Registered Diatition (RD), Physical and Occupational Therapy, Social
Services, patient, family and caregivers as an integral part of achieving
restorative status. The Home Health team promotes patient advocacy interacting
with physicians and community resources for positive physical, emotional and
spiritual outcomes.

5. Infusion Center- Outpatient Hospital:

a. The purpose of this area is to meet the needs of patients who require blood
transfusions, antibiotic therapy, arthritic infusions, and 1V infusions for
dehydration. Offsite Outpatient infusion is for Chemotherapy.

6. Intensive Care Unit:

a. The Intensive Care Unit develops, implements, and evaluates a plan of nursing
care for patients 14 years of age and older or weighing at least 35 kilograms with
actual or potential life threatening medical or surgical conditions.

7. Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU):

a. The purpose of this unit is to develop, implement, and evaluate a plan of care for
infants born prematurely and/or infants who are critically ill. Patient needs are
met through individualized and specialized care coordinated through the
interdisciplinary team approach. This plan emphasizes supportive,



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 6 of 10

8.

10.

developmental and therapeutic care unique to the needs of each infant and
includes the family and/or designated family/infant support members.

Progressive Care Unit/Specialty Clinic:

a.

This is a 41 bed secured unit that provides various services to patients age 18
and above demonstrating aberrant behavior requiring 24 hour supervision
concurrently with their medical condition. Justice involved individuals may be
placed on this unit. This level is appropriate to use when the patient is
hemodynamically stable along with any of the following. InterQual criteria will be
utilized to meet the level of care required for the available bed.
i. Continuous Cardiac Monitoring (See Telemetry: Admission and
Discharge Criteria Policy)

i Chemotherapy Administration (See Patient Care Services: Chemotherapy

Administration Procedure)
iii. Acute rehabilitation

iv. Ante-partum care
V. Post-partum care
vi. Medical-Surgical

Perioperative/Perianesthesia Services:

a.

Post-Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU):

i Provides nursing care to patients in the post-operative/post anesthetic
phase of the Perioperative period. Nursing care plans are developed,
implemented and evaluated on individual patient needs. Nursing care is
provided to deliver a safe, effective and appropriate level of care to
patients 14 years of age and older.

Pre-Operative Hold:

i. The purpose of this unit is to assess, implement and evaluate a plan of
pre-admission education to pre-operative patients 14 years of age and
older, and significant others. Each patient's needs are met through
individualized and specialized nursing care coordinated through the
interdisciplinary team approach for care. The plan emphasizes
supportive, therapeutic, and preventive care inclusive of the unique
physical and emotional needs of the patient.

Surgery

i. The purpose of Surgery/Operating Room is to provide surgical care to
patients fourteen (14) years of age and older throughout the
intraoperative phase of patient care. The endoscopy suite is also included
within the surgery department. Nursing care plans are developed,
implemented, and evaluated for each individual patient who enters the
operating room. Most surgical specialties are provided, including cardiac.
There are no trauma or transplant services provided.

Outpatient Post-Anesthesia Care Unit:

i The purpose of this area is to provide nursing care to patients requiring
recovery from outpatient interventional procedures or stage two recovery
(when needed). Nursing care is provided to deliver a safe, effective and
appropriate level of patient care.

Preoperative Education (Outpatient Service Center):

i. The purpose of this area is to provide preoperative education to and
assessment of patients prior to the day of the surgical procedure. Patients
may either have face to face visits, or a telephone call for assessment
and education.

Telemetry (2 East, 2 West, 4 East, 4 West and 3 Pavilion):

a.

The purpose of Telemetry is to develop, implement, and evaluate the Plan of
Nursing Care for all clients. Telemetry accepts patients 14 years of age and older
who require cardiac monitoring, arterial line monitoring, chronic mechanical

68



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care
Page 7 of 10

ventilation, mechanical ventilator weaning, or patients requiring intensity of
service which cannot be provided in the acute care setting.

11. Women and Newborn Services:

a. The Women and Newborn Services department develops, implements, and
evaluates a plan of care for the mother and family experiencing the birth of a
child or pregnant women experiencing medical/surgical/obstetrical complications.
This plan incorporates mutual interdisciplinary interactions while maintaining
patient advocacy. This plan of care includes the patient, family, significant others
and the nurse in response to psychological and physical needs.

12. Wound Care (Inpatient and Outpatient):

a. The Wound Care Team provides advanced therapy and treatment for patients
with non-healing wounds or who are at risk for limb loss. A plan is developed
after thorough assessment of factors that may impede healing including vascular
insufficiency, infection, biomechanical forces, and physical and psychological
needs. Interventions such as prevention/protection, debridement, grafts, or
hyperbaric oxygen are implemented and reassessment/updating of the plan
occurs at least weekly and as needed. Wound volume is tracked to assure
anticipated healing trajectories are met. The patient, family and significant others,
as well as a multidisciplinary Wound Team, are involved in the plan of care.

B. Areas where Nursing Care is delivered, not under the Division of Nursing:

1. Nursing care departments not specifically reporting to the chief nurse executive are
overseen by the chief nurse executive via a dotted line relationship, ongoing meetings,
regular communication opportunities, review and oversight of nursing practice issues,
and approval of policies and procedures.

2. Cardiac Catheterization Lab:

a. The purpose of the Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory is to diagnose the exact
nature, extent and severity of a patient's heart disease to determine the correct
therapeutic approach. Patient's needs are met through individualized and
specialized nursing care coordinated through the interdisciplinary team approach

for care.
3. Cardiac Rehabilitation:
a. The purpose of the Cardiac Rehabilitation department is to evaluate, monitor,

and educate patients on the importance of risk factor modification and lifestyle
changes necessary to improve quality of life and overall cardiovascular health
and to avoid any further complications or events pertaining to heart health.
Patient treatment plans are developed by a multidisciplinary staff based on
individual patient needs, medical history, and goals. The main foci are the ECG
monitored exercise training session, medication understanding and compliance,
diabetes management, and weight management.

4, Cardiovascular Health Institute:

a. The Cardiovascular Health Institute focus is disease prevention, education, and
treatment through a multidisciplinary approach of Cardiology, Interventional
Radiology, Cardiac and Vascular Surgery and through cardiovascular
screenings. Patient’s needs are met through a Nursing Clinical Care Coordinator
who coordinates and manages patient-focused care, communicates openly with
the patient’s physicians, and simplifies and streamlines the experience.

5. Neurovascular Institute:

a. The Neuroscience Institute is a co-management collaborative between Tri-City
Healthcare District and physicians who practice within all domains of neurological
and neurosurgical health. The objective is to provide high quality, seamless care
for all patients who receive care from the most basic screening to most complex
neurosurgical procedures. The multi-disciplinary approach is aimed at achieving
the highest quality patient outcome of care that is delivered in the most efficient
manner.



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care

Page 8 of 10

6. Orthopaedic Institute:

a. The Orthopaedic and Spine Institute is a co-management collaborative between
Tri-City Healthcare District and physicians who practice within all domains of
orthopedic and spine services. The objective is to provide high quality, seamless
care for all patients who receive care from the most basic musculoskeletal
screening to most complex joint and spinal procedures. The multi-disciplinary
approach is aimed at achieving the highest quality patient outcome of care that is
delivered in the most efficient manner.

7. Interventional Radiology:

a. Interventional Radiology is a sub-specialty of Diagnostic Radiology that has
evolved over the past 25 years to become an integral part of comprehensive
nursing care, providing alternatives to surgery for a broad range of health
problems. Patient's needs are met through individualized and specialized nursing
care coordinated through the interdisciplinary team approach for care.

Xlil.  INTEGRATION OF PATIENT CARE AND SUPPORT SERVICES

A

A collaborative multldlsmpllnary team approach, . which takes into account the unique
knowledge, judgment and skills of a variety of disciplines in achieving desired patient outcomes,
serves as a foundation for integration. Open lines of communication exist between departments
providing patient care, patient services and support services within the hospital, and as
appropriate with community agencies to ensure efficient, effective and continuous patient care.
To facilitate effective interdepartmental relationships, problem-solving and shared decision
making is encouraged at the point of service within the organization. Staff is encouraged to
address one another’s issues and concerns and seek mutually acceptable solutions.
Supervisors and managers have the authority to solve problems and seek solutions within their
span of control. Positive interdepartmental communications are strongly expected as part of our
service standards.

When problems/issues identified involve two or more areas providing patient care, patient
services or support services, supervisors or managers may elect to establish an
interdepartmental work group of the personnel from the areas involved for the purpose of
identifying mutually acceptable solutions. Other options would include nursing professional
practice or operations. Leaders have several options for solutions to interdepartmental issues.
Some of these options include: establishing interdepartmental work groups/committees (ad hoc
or permanent); referring to the Performance Improvement Committee for consideration in
forming a Rapid Improvement Event; and addressing issues in staff meetings.

XIV. REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS

A

The clinical practice departments are organized and grouped according to services offered and
are under the management of a Director/Manager. Each Director/Manager is accountable to the
Chief Nurse Executive (CNE) for patient care and services provided in their areas.

1. Staff meetings shall be conducted by the Director/Clinical Manager or designee with a

mechanism established for all staff members’ participation.

The Manager/ANM shall meet with their assigned Director/CNE at least monthly.

Directors/Managers shall ensure staff communication meetings are held at least

monthly.

Directors/ /IManagers may attend the Medical Staff Division Meetings when appropriate.

he Chief Nurse Executive (CNE):

Assures that the clinical departments are organized consistently with the variety and

complexity of patient care service and the scope of clinical activities.

2. Is responsible and accountable for the daily operations of the PCS units and is a
member of the Senior Leadership Team and participates in Board meetings as a C-Suite
member.

3. Reports the status of the plan for Nursing Services to the Clinical Quality Committee,
and to Board of Directors.

SHs ON

70



Patient Care Services
Plan for Nursing Care

Page 9 of 10
4, Attends Medical Executive as the representative for the Department of Nursing.
C. Patient Care Services Councils communicate with medical staff committees in the following
way:
1. Quality reports to the Medical Quality/Peer Review Committee and QAPI.
2. CNE sits on the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) as a non -voting member.
3. Medical Executive Committee reports to the Board of Directors (BOD)
XV. QUALITY
A. Each Nursing area has developed a plan for patient care with metrics for quality and
performance improvement. These are measured at least monthly and reported to the through
QAPI! and the Board annually. Areas of monitoring include but are not fimited to:
1. Comprehensive unit-based safety program (CUSP) Projects
2. Catheter-associated urinary tract infection (CAUTI)
3. Central line-associated bloodstream infection (CLABSI)
4, Falls
5. Hand washing
6. Hospital acquired condition (HAC)
7. Medication Administration
8. Skin Care
B. Task forces, teams, committees and councils with staff participation as appropriate, shall be
utilized to address issues identified through the Performance Improvement process.
XVIl. BUDGET
A. The plan for the provision of patient services includes the hospital's budget process and
considers the following:
1. Patient requirements and their implications for staffing;
2. The hospital's ability to attract and develop staff;
3. Relevant information from performance improvement, risk management, utilization
review, and other evaluation activities pertaining to unit, area, or departmental staffing;
4, Feedback and specific concerns raised by patients, staff, and physicians.
B. In preparation for each fiscal year, the Department Director and/or Manager develop an

operating and capital budget for each respective cost center and it is then submitted to the
executive team and Board of Directors for final approval. Actual performance compared to the
budget is reviewed regularly during the course of the fiscal year and is distributed to the
department Director and/or Manager. A formal annual review of the effectiveness of the
budgetary plan is made following the close of each fiscal year. Requests for capital equipment
expenditures are initiated within each department/unit and are forwarded to the vice presidents,
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Office, Chief Nurse Executive, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Human Resources Officer, Chief Compliance Officer; for certain capital items, referral to
the Board of Directors for final approval is required.

XVIl. NURSING LEADERSHIP

A.

B.

To maintain a working environment that encourages professional growth through practice,
education and research, peer review, resulting in quality nursing care and satisfaction.
The Role of Nursing Leadership in Facilitating Excellent Nursing Care

1. We recognize the excellence delivered by our staff. As nurse leaders, we believe our
critical role is making this excellence possible.
2. We believe nurses who provide direct patient care provide invaluable direction,

information and insight into the delivery of patient care and nursing practice, therefore;
every attempt to ensure their attendance at Shared Decision-Making Council meetings is
made.

3. Nursing is a profound partnership between nurses and patients. Nurses help patients to
achieve their potential for health and to cope with their iliness/injury. The professional
nurse combines superb technical skill with an expert knowledge base. The professional

71



Patient Care Services
Ptan for Nursing Care
Page 10 of 10

nurse then needs an outstanding knack for communication-ease to achieve the best
patient outcomes.

XVIIl. NURSING SHARED-DECISION MAKING STRUCTURE

XIX.

A The Shared-Decision Making (SDM) structure shall be clearly defined through which the nursing
staff will coordinate and integrate the delivery of nursing care. The SDM structure will recognize
participation from all nursing staff members and will give evidence of shared decision making
within the formal structure of the nursing staff.

B. The Purpose of SDM:

1. To provide a structure that supports the point of care and sustains ownership and
accountability at the point of service. This structure builds a culture for people to be
together, to tell the story. It creates: shared meaning and purpose in work, heaithy
relationships and meaningful conversations. All staff is encouraged to begin to
participate at the level that they are most comfortable with, and then to “spread their
wings" as they become more familiar with the concept of SDM, feeling empowered to
contribute to decisions and trust that the community of nursing embraces their
contributions, it will flourish. Decisions are made through consensus. Proposed
decisions are brought to the various nursing committees for discussion, revisions,
approval or disapproval. Final decisions are based on research, evidence, regulations
and/or best practices.

SHARED DECISION MAKING COMMITTEES
A. Patient Care Services (PCS) is managed through application of Interdisciplinary Shared

Leadership.
1. The councils of the PCS areas operate under Shared Leadership.
a. A staff and management representative of the unit-based committees may

participate in the councils

b. Staff members/Assistant Nurse Managers (ANM) shall participate in
committees/councils as assigned and shall be provided time for attendance when
on duty. (See Professional Nursing Governance Bylaws for detail).

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
A. Patient Care Services: Chemotherapy Administration Procedure
B. Telemetry: Admission and Discharge Criteria Policy

REFERENCES:

A. American Nurses Association. (2015) Code of Ethics for Nurses with Interpretive Statements.
Washington, D.C.: American Nurses Publishing.

American Nurses Association. (2015) Nursing: Scope and Standards of Practice.

California Nurse Practice Act (2016)

O'Grady, T. P. (1999) Leading the Revolution in Health Care. 164.

OOow

12



(C\) Tri-City Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: RIGID LARYNGOSCOPE REPROCESSING PROCEDURE

Purpose: Establish a standard practice for reprocessing of contaminated reusable rigid
laryngoscope handles and blades after use during intubations.-

Supportive Data: = i PR i i

Equipment:
34. Plastic Ziplock bag
4:2.  Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

A. DEFINITION(S):
1. Semi-Critical Medical Instruments: Instruments that contact mucous membranes or non-intact

skin, but are not intended to penetrate sterile tissue. Items directly attached to instruments that
contact mucous membranes, such as the handles of rigid laryngoscopes, should be considered
semi-critical instruments.

2. Intubation Trays: Specially prepared trays with all necessary emergency equipment needed for
intubation prepared by the Sterile Processing Department (SPD).

3. Laryngoscope: Any of several types of tubes, equipped with electrical lighting, used in
examining or operating upon the interior of the larynx through the mouth.

4, Laryngoscope handles: Handheld battery-powered, fiber-optic light source for use in intubation.

5. Laryngoscope blades; Assorted size laryngoscope blades that attach to the Laryngoscope
handles for use during intubation.

PROCEDURE:

1. Contaminated reusable rigid laryngoscopes handles and blades shall be processed as soon
as possible after use.

a. Prolonged delay between use of the laryngoscope and reprocessing may result in the
drying and hardening of debris on the laryngoscope’s surfaces.

b. Designated personnel are responsible to return and exchange trays in SPD.

2. The handle and blade shall be transported in an enclosed zip-lock bag or plastic container to the
dedicated decontamination area for reprocessing.

3. The designated transporter delivers the tray to the processing area for decontamination.

4. The tray is checked for contamination and is cleaned using hospital approved
disinfectantSani-clothes.

5. Sterile items on the tray are inspected for package integrity. Items suspected of possible
contamination shall be disposed.

6. Remove batteries and bulb from the laryngoscope handle.

7. Clean the blade and handle using an enzymatic cleaner.

a. Blades and handles must undergo a minimum of high-level disinfection. The
reprocessing of the device must take into consideration the manufacturer's
recommendation, the type of material (if it is able to withstand the reprocessing method),
and the infection risk to the patient.

8. Place reusable laryngoscope handles and blades in a basket
a9. Place basket in the washer/disinfector and run at the pre-set cycle for instruments
8-10. Forif steam sterilization-is-used, place the reusable laryngoscope handles and blades blade
and-the-handle in individual peel packs and run the cycle following the manufacturer’'s
recommendations.-
< Clinical | OPOFH0Rs | promacya | infection Medical Professional
TReiow | polciet | pxoouv | Temtes | Corel | Beoube | A | GO
12/0071,/1 gmo, 10/1&/2511 5, 10 11/111 g nia 0317 1 1/100512?/17, 0111 011

73



| Patient Care Services Prosedure-Manual
Rigid Laryngoscope Reprocessing Procedure
Page 2 of 2

8:11. The bulb and batteries are reinstalled into the laryngoscope handle and the-blades-are tested
before placing back into a peel pack and placed in the tray.
a. This process is performed using clean technique to avoid recontamination of equipment.
48:12. Single-use disposable handles and blades will be disposed of at point-of-use following
the manufacturer’s recommendations.

C. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Infection Control Policy: Hand Hygiene - 1C.8
2. Infection Control Policy: Standard and Transmission Based Precautions - IC.5

D. REFERENCES:
1. Association for the Advancement of Medical Instrumentation. ST79
2. Department of Health Services Recommendations for Reprocessing of Semi-Critical
Instruments Such as Rigid Laryngoscopes. April, 30" 2007. AFL 07-09




(c‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES-ROLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 07/11 SUBJECT: Skin Preparation,
Surgical/Procedural

REVISION DATE: 42/4302/17 POLICY NUMBER: IV.V

Department Approval: 03/17

Clinical Policies and Procedures Approval: 12/4303/17

Nurse Executive Committee Approval: 12M1303/17

Operating Room Committee Approval: 04/17

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 02/4405/4708/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 03/14

Board of Directors Approval: 03/14

A. PURPOSE:

1. To provide guidelines for surgical/procedural site skin antisepsis.
B. POLICY:

1. The surgical/procedural site and the surrounding area shall be free of dirt,-and debris,
emollients, and cosmetics before surgical preparation.

2. The surgical/procedural site shall be assessed before skin preparation.

a. Presence of lesions, rashes, warts or other skin conditions at the surgical/procedural site
shall be documented and the surgeon shall be notified.
b. Jewelry or body piercings should be removed before skin preparation.

3. Hair at the surgical site should be left in place whenever possible. If the presence of hair will
interfere with the surgical procedure and removal is necessary, the following precautions shall
be taken:

a. Hair removal shall be performed as close to the time of surgery as possible.

b. Hair removal at the surgical/procedural site shall be performed according to physician
orders.

C. Hair removal shall be done in a manner that preserves skin integrity.

i. Electric or battery-powered clippers with a disposable or reusable head that can
be disinfected between patients is preferred.

ii. Razor use is strongly discouraged, but if used wet shaving is preferable to dry
shaving.

ii-iil. A sterile razor may be used by the surgeon to remove hair from the
scrotum for scrotal procedures and implant cases involving the scrotum.
The surgeon shall be provided a sterile razor and supplies to complete a
wet shave.

4, The surgical/procedural site and surrounding area shall be prepared with a Food & Drug
Administration (FDA)-approved antimicrobial agent in accordance with manufacturer's written
instructions.

a. Selection of antimicrobial agents shall be based on patient allergy or sensitivity, incision
location, skin condition, and physician preference.

b. Skin antiseptics shall be used in the full concentration as packaged by the
manufacturer; do not dilute skin antiseptics prior to use.

b-c.  The surgical/procedural site shall be prepared by personnel who are knowledgeable
about the patient and have demonstrated competency in skin preparation techniques.

75



| Patient Care Services Poliey-Manual

Skin Preparation, Surgical/Procedural

Page 2 of 2

8.
8:9.

4:2.

i. Preps shall be performed by a Registered Nurse (RN) or Physician/Allied Health
Professional (AHP).

i Advanced Care Technicians (ACTs), aNursing aAssistants,
aAnesthesia tTechnicians or sSurgical {Technicians may prep under
the direct supervision of an RN or pPhysician/AHP.

d. Personnel performing surgical skin antisepsis shall wear sterile gloves and use
sterile supplies to apply antiseptic agents.

e-e. Antimicrobialseptic agents shall be applied using aseptic technique and proceeding

from the incision site to the periphery.
i. Highly contaminated areas (eg, anus, colostomy) near the surgical site
should be isolated with a sterile barrier drape.

Eii. If a highly contaminated area is part of the procedure, the area with a lower
bacterial count is prepped first, followed by the area of higher contamination.
#dii.  Anintestinal or urinary stoma within the surgical field should be cleansed gently

and separately from the rest of the prepped area.

#iziv.  When prepping the anus, vagina, or a stoma, sinus, ulcer, or open wound, the
sponge should be applied once to the area and then discarded.

iwv. Vaginal preps for procedures that include the abdomen should be performed in a
manner to prevent splashing of antiseptic agent expelled from the vagina onto
the prepped abdomen.

I Vaginal preps, inclusive or exclusive of Foley catheter insertion, are
started and finished by the same RN. The vaginal prep sponges are
removed from the vagina prior to disposal of prep supplies/fFoley catheter
supplies, to prevent unintentional retention of the vaginal prep sponges.

Skin preparation shall be done in a manner that preserves skin integrity and prevents injury.

a. Antimicrobial agents shall not be allowed to pool beneath the patient, tourniquets,
electrocardiography (ECG) electrodes, positioning equipment, or electrosurgical
dispersive pad.

Skin antiseptics shall be stored in the original, single-use container.

Special Considerations for Alcohol Based Prep solutions:

a. Sufficient time must be allowed for the solution to dry and vapors to dissipate before the
surgical drapes are applied and any heat source is used.

i. Heat sources include: Electrosurgery, cautery, laser, burrs, drills, defibrillators,
and light cords.

ii. Verify in a “time out” before starting the procedure to assure the above condition
is met.

Skin preparation agents shall not be warmed prior to application.

Patient skin preparation and skin condition shall be documented in the Perioperative/Procedural

record.

C. REFERENCE(S)

-AORN Guidelines

for Perloperatlve Practice, 2016 Edltlon
Patient Care Services: Sterile Technique

76



A
1.

‘C@) Tri-C'rty Medical Center Distribution:  Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: UNIVERSAL PROTOCOL

Purpose: To outline the requirements and the process of Universal Protocol for surgical and invasive
procedures. This procedure is designed to enhance patient safety by ensuring proper
identification of the patient and that the correct invasive or surgical procedure is performed
on the correct side and at the correct site. Procedures that place the patient at the most
risk include those that involve general anesthesia or deep sedation.

DEFINITION(S):

Invasive Procedure: The puncture or the incision of the skin, insertion of an instrument or
insertion of foreign material into the body for diagnostic or treatment-related purposes. For
purposes of this policy, excluded as invasive procedures are: venipuncture, arterial puncture
for lab draw, nasogastric tube placement, ard-uretheral catheter placement, and peripheral
V.

Patient Safety: In all cases the goal of the Universal Protocol is patient safety. To that end, the
site marking or time out may be deferred if the risk outweighs the benefit to the patient in a life-
threatening situation.

Pre-Procedural Verification: The process of assuring that-all relevant and needed documents
(e.g. history and physical, signed procedure consent form, informed consent documented by
physician, physicians orders, surgery/procedure schedule, nursing assessment, pre-anesthesia
assessment, labeled diagnostic and radiology test results, scans, andfer-pathology and biopsy
reports, and any required blood products, implants, devices, and/or special equipment for
procedure), information and equipment are available prior to the start of the procedure, correctly
identified, labeled and matched to the patient’s identifiers, and are reviewed and consistent with
the patient’s expectations and team's understanding of the intended patient, procedure, site and
side.

Site Marking: For purposes of this procedure, site marking is when the Licensed-tndependent
Practitiener{LIR) physician/Allied Health Professional (AHP) who has been granted
privileges to perform the procedure and will be directly involved in the procedure places his/her
initials at the intended site of the procedure. Marking the site may also be done by use of a
special purpose armband when it is not possible/feasible to mark the actual site.

Time Out: For purposes of this procedure, the Time Out means that after the induction of
anesthesia or administration of any pre-procedure medication (as applicable),-and completion of
prepping and draping, and just prior to the start of the procedure (injection of local anesthesia,
insertion of instrument or device, and/or incision), the staff involved with the procedure cease all
other noise and activities (to the extent possible without compromising patient safety) and
conduct the final assessment that the correct patient, site and procedure are identified.

B. POLICY:

| T,

The pre--operative/pre-procedure verification process occurs with the patient is awake and
aware if possible (as applicable):

At the time the surgery/procedure is scheduled

At the time of preadmission testing/assessment-

At the time of admission

Before the patient leaves the unit/floor

In Pre-Op Hold/pre-procedure area

Prior to transporting the patient to the operating/procedural room

Anytime the responsibility for care of the patient is transferred to another member of the
surgical/procedural care team (including anesthesia providers), at the time of and during
the surgery/procedure

@™o oW

Department
Review

Operating Room
Committee

Clinical Policies
& Procedures

Nursing
Executive
Council

Medical
Executive
Committee

Professional
Affairs
Committee

Board of
Directors

10/08, 01/09,
09/09, 06/10,
07/12, 0313,
09/14, 02/17

10/14, 05/17

08/12, 07/13,
04/14, 10/14,
06/17

08/12, 04/14,
10114, 0717

10/12, 06/14,

11/14, 08/17

11/12,07/14, 01/15

12/12, 07/14,
01/15

7



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manuat

Universal Protocol
Page 2 of 6

2. A Time Out is performed for every surgery and invasive procedure, regardless of laterality,

discrepancy discovered during the time out must be resolved before proceeding with the

l levels, structure, location, or setting within the hospital, including bedside procedures. Any

invasive procedure/surgery-te-proceed.
3. Any discrepancies identified during the pre-procedure verification process shall require a “hard

stop” and a “huddle” to be called at the patient’s bedside to resolve the discrepancy.

a.

a

Discrepancies include any difference between the patient’s verbal confirmation of the
surgery/procedure to be performed, the H&P, order for consent, surgery/procedural
schedule, consent and imaging studies.

Members of the huddle may include, but are not limited to:

i. LIR-Physician/AHP performing the procedure

ii. Anesthesiologist

iii. Radiologist/Radiology Physician’s Assistant

iv. Circulating Registered Nurse (RN)

V. Scrub RN or Operating Room (OR) Technician

vi. RN caring for the patient in the pre-procedural area
vil. Primary RN

viii. Patient/patient representative

ix. OR/Pre-procedural area charge nurse

X. Imaging technologist

Xi. O©rOther healthcare provider (HCP) involved in the procedure

The following documents are reviewed in the huddie:

i. H&P

i. Order for consent

iii. Surgery/procedural schedule (if add on for the same day, no printed schedule is

required)
iv. Consent form
V. Radiologic studies as ordered

The procedure shall not progress until all discrepancies are resolved.

The discussion resolving the discrepancy and the final result of the decision shall be
documented in the medical record by one of the following:

i ER-Physician/AHP performing the procedure

ii. RN/Healthcare Provider

iii. Anesthesiologist (as applicable)

C. SITE MARKING:
1. Process:

a.

Prior to leaving Pre-Op Hold or the pre-procedure area, the intended surgical site is
marked by the LIP-physician/AHP performing the procedure. Site marking must be
legible, unambiguous, used consistently throughout hospital, and be visible once the
patient is prepped and draped.

i. Outpatient areas without pre-procedure areas will perform site marking in the
procedure room.

Site marking is required for all surgeries and invasive procedures except:

i. Emergency situations where any delay in initiating the surgery or invasive
procedure would compromise the safety of the patient orf outcome of the
procedure.

ii. Single organ procedures without intended laterality.

ii. Procedures that are intended to be bilateral and no laterality-based choice is

involved.

iv. There is no pre-determined site of insertion (i.e. cardiac catheterization,
Interventional Radiology procedures).

V. The site is so clearly evident (i.e. open fracture, laceration, cast) that it cannot be
confused.

78



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual

Universal Protocol
Page 3 of 6

vi. The HR-physician/AHP performing the procedure is in continuous attendance of
the patient from the point of decision to perform the procedure through the
completion of the procedure.

vii. Endoscopic procedures and Bronchoscopies.

c. Site marking takes into consideration laterality, surface (i.e. flexor/extensor), level (spine)
or specific lesion/digit to be treated.

d. The mark is made using a marker that is sufficiently permanent to remain visible after
skin prep and the mark is to be placed such that it is visible after the patient is prepped
and draped.

e. The mark is made using the physician/AHPLIR's initials.
i First and last initials are used. If the first and last initials are “N.Q.” a third initial is

used.
ii. The HR-physician/AHP may choose to also draw a line at the proposed incision
site.
f. In the event of multiple primary procedures by different-LHR physician/AHP'’s, each site
must be marked prior to admission to the OR/Procedural area.
g. The site marking should be done with the patient/family awake and involved, to the
extent possible.
h. For minimal access procedures intended to treat a lateralized internal organ, the

intended side is indicated by a mark at or near the insertion site.
i Marking for procedures performed at the patient's bedside will occur prior to
prepping/draping or starting the procedure.
For spinal procedures, in addition to preoperative skin marking of the general spinal region,
special intraoperative radiographic techniques may be used for marking the exact vertebral
level.
Dental Procedures: The operative tooth name(s),-ard number(s) and/or letter(s) are indicated
on the documentation (OR schedule, H&P/Rplan for Ssurgery, Qorder for Gconsent) and the
operative tooth/teeth are marked with the surgeon’s initials on the dental radiographs or dental
diagrams. The radiograph/diagram is posted in the procedure room prior to start of the
procedure.
Nerve blocks: Anesthesia shall confirm the surgical/procedure site, through a comparison of the
patient’s verbal response and a review of the medical record and Pprocedural Geconsent form,
prior to the administration of sedation and/or initiation of a nerve block. The Anesthesiologist
may place a pre-surgical nerve block only after the surgical site has been marked by the-LR
physician/AHP.
Special Use Armband:
a. A special use armband is used when the surgical site is required to be marked, but
cannot be marked because of one of the following situations:
i. The patient refuses-
ii. The patient is a neonate-
ii. The proposed site is technically or anatomically difficult to mark (e.g., perineum)

iv. Movement of the patient to mark could compromise the safety of the patient or
outcome of the procedure (e.g. patient with unstable spine fracture)-
b. The first and last name of the patient, a second patient identifier, and the planned

procedure, including site and side, are written on the armband. In the event of laterality,
the armband is applied on the side of the intended procedure.

The HR-physician/AHP must initial the armband.

The armband is removed at the conclusion of the procedure or immediately prior to
prepping if necessary to perform the surgical/procedural prep on the banded limb.

ao

D. SCHEDULING:

1.

Scheduling for the procedure must include the following information:

79



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manuat
Universal Protocol

Page 4 of 6

a. Patient name and second patient identifier (DOB, MRN, or FIN). Cases cannot be
scheduled unless this information is available (with the exception of an emergency,
when a delay procuring information could adversely affect the patient).

b. Entire procedure, exact site, level, digit and side/ laterality. No abbreviations may be
used.

c. See department specific scheduling procedures for additional scheduling requirements.

| E. PRE-PROCEDURE VERIFICATION PROCESS:

1. Upon admission, the patient’s identity is verified by the person admitting the patient. An
appropriate identification band is affixed to the patient’'s arm (or leg). See Patient Care Services

Policy Identification, Patient.

2. Before the patient leaves the unit/floor the Registered Nurse (RN):

a. Reviews the medical record to verify the following items are available, accurately
matched to the patient and are all in agreement for the procedure/site/side to be
performed:

i. H&P — plan for surgery
i, Orders for consent
iii. Consent form

iv. Surgery/procedural schedule
V. Radiologic studies report (as applicable)

b. Completes the pre-operative/pre-procedure checklist (as applicable).

c. Ensures site marking is completed if patient is going directly to the operating room.

d. Any discrepancies identified during the pre-procedure verification process shall require a
“hard stop” and a “huddle” to be called at the patient’s bedside to resolve the
discrepancy.

3. In Pre-Op Hold/pre-procedure area the pre-procedural RN/HCP:

a. Reviews the medical record to verify the following items are available, accurately
matched to the patient and are all in agreement for the procedure/site/side to be
performed:

i. H&P — plan for surgery
i. Orders for consent
ii. Consent form
iv. Surgery/procedural schedule
2 Radiologic report and images, as ordered-
b Reviews the Pre-Operative Checklist to ensure accuracy and completeness.

e&c. Ensures site marking is completed.
e-d. Any discrepancies identified during the pre-procedure verification process, shall require
a “hard stop” and a "huddle” to be called at the patient’s bedside to resolve the
discrepancy.
4. Prior to transferring the patient to the operating room/procedural area the OR/Procedural RN:
a. Reviews the medical record to verify the following items are available, accurately
matched to the patient and are all in agreement for the proceduref/site/side to be
performed:
i. H&P - plan for surgery
ii. Orders for consent
iii. Consent form

iv. Surgery/procedural schedule

V. Radiologic report and images, as ordered-—{
b. Reviews the Pre-Operative Checklist to ensure accuracy and completeness.
c. Ensures necessary implants or special equipment isare available.
d. Ensures site marking is completed.

80



